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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2018 
  

 

As management of the Southfield Redevelopment Authority (SRA), we offer readers of these financial statements 
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage 
readers to consider the information presented in this report. 

 
On August 24, 2014, the Governor of Massachusetts signed into law legislation to promote the sustainable 
economic development of the former South Weymouth Naval Air Station for the benefit of the Towns of Abington, 
Rockland, and Weymouth, the NAS South Weymouth Region and the Commonwealth (Chapter 291 of the Acts of 
2014, the Act). Among other things, the Act reconstituted the South Shore Tri-Town Development Authority 
(SSTTDC) as the Southfield Redevelopment Authority. 

 
SSTTDC was a quasi-municipal entity required to provide municipal services including; public safety, public 
infrastructure maintenance, storm drain management, education, health, planning, zoning, water, sewer, and general 
administrative services. With the passing of the legislation the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, 
Accountant, and the Water/Sewer Superintendent departed. 

 
The Act mandated that the SRA complete the following tasks to comply with the new enacted legislation: 

 
➢ Tax Plan 
➢ Bond Indenture Certificate of Trustee 
➢ Redevelopment Plan 
➢ Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Agreement on Financing 

for the Parkway 
➢ Parkway Phase Two Financing Agreement 
➢ Amend Zoning By-Laws and Regulations 
➢ Amend Disposition and Development Agreement 

 
In March 2015, the Office of Economic Adjustment of the United States Department of defense formally recognized 
the SRA as the Local Redevelopment Authority (LRA) for the purpose of implementing the redevelopment plan for 
the former NAS South Weymouth, and assuming said responsibility from the South Shore Tri-Town Development 
Corporation. As such, the SRA (the Authority) timely satisfied all of its obligations under the Act and all of the 
Act’s provisions are in full force and effect. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements. 
The Authority’s financial statements are comprised of the following components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to financial statements. Required supplementary information 
as mandated by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is presented following the financial 
statements and related notes to provide additional analysis. 

 
Government-Wide Financial Statements: The government-wide financial statements provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the Authority as a whole. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private sector business. 

 
v 



SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2018 
  

 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Authority’s assets plus deferred outflows of 
resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources resulting in the aggregate net position of the Authority. 
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of 
the Authority is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most 
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenditures are reported in this 
statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods. 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Authority that are principally 
supported by pledged revenues, assessments, taxes, developer fees and other revenues (governmental activities) 
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of the Authority include salaries and other expenses 
associated with conducting operations of the Authority in accordance with the enacted legislation, inclusive of 
pensions, benefits and insurances and debt service costs. The Authority’s business-type activity is associated with 
water and sewer activities. 
 
Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other state and local governments, 
uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the 
funds of the Authority can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet 
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Authority maintains several individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances for the General Fund, Reserve Fund, Parkway Maintenance Fund, all of which are considered to be 
major funds. The remaining governmental funds are considered nonmajor and are aggregated and into other 
governmental funds column in this presentation. Individual fund information for each of these nonmajor 
governmental funds is available from the Authority’s Treasurer. 
 
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found in the accompanying pages of this report.  
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Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. The Authority uses an enterprise fund to account for its water and sewer 
activities. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer operations. 
 
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found in the accompanying pages of this report.  
 
Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
Authority. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the Authority’s programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much 
like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found in the accompanying pages of this report.  
 
Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements 
follow the basic financial statements described above. 
 
Required supplementary information:  The supplementary information presented as required by governmental 
accounting standards, includes certain budgetary comparison information, employer pension plan contributions and 
information related to the Authority’s retiree benefits plan for health care (OPEB). 

 
General Government 

 

The Southfield Redevelopment Authority (SRA), formally SSTTDC, was created in 1998. However, it did not have 
a basis or authority to collect taxes until 2009 on the original transfer of 324 acres. It is generally accepted that 
municipalities have real estate taxing authority but in the case of the SRA, it was slowed due to on-going 
negotiations with the Navy for the transfer of taxable land and the adverse economic conditions suffered by the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts commencing in 2007. The Navy transfer of the 558 acres did not take place until 
December 2011 and was not included as a tax basis until 2014. In 2016, the Master Developer changed the name of 
the redevelopment area from “Southfield” to “Union Point”. 

 
Property Values 
 

Real Estate property values within the SRA are submitted annually by the Board of Assessors of the host 
communities to the Massachusetts Department of Revenue for certification in accordance with MGL Chapter 59. 
Once certified, the SRA is able to determine its district tax rate. With the commencement of five residential projects 
(Brookfield Village, Dorset Park, Fairing Way, the Mastlight, and Woodstone Crossing) and the issuance of a total 
of 507 occupancy permits, 203 during fiscal year 2017 and 304 in fiscal year 2018, residential values increased 
approximately 84% in 2018. 
 
The first year for property valuation was during 2009, the first year the Massachusetts Department of Revenue 
approved the SRA valuation methodology. The historical property valuations are listed below. 
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Class FY2018  FY2017  FY2016  FY2015  FY2014 
Residential  $           209,622,064    $          113,701,211    $            98,583,690    $            91,868,600    $           64,167,400  
Open Space                                 -                                  -                                  -                    6,070,500                   2,542,500  
Commercial                 51,267,106                 52,209,879                  52,066,010                  60,718,700                 57,923,700  

Personal Property                   1,648,020                  1,724,900                   1,527,580                   1,975,853                  1,776,905 
Total Valuation  $           262,537,190   $          167,635,990   $          152,177,280   $          160,633,653    $         126,400,505 

          

          
Class FY2013  FY2012  FY2011  FY2010  FY2009 

Residential  $             47,720,900    $           20,330,300    $           13,131,835    $           12,642,800    $          12,642,800  
Open Space                   2,542,500                      500,800                   1,809,800                   1,809,800                  1,809,800  
Commercial                 60,268,800                 35,467,300                 35,938,865                 35,106,400                35,106,400  

Personal Property                          3,363                        53,000                        19,000                        19,000                       19,000  

Total Valuation  $           110,535,563    $           56,351,400    $           50,899,500    $           49,578,000    $          49,578,000  

         
 

Legislative Changes 

Fiscal year 2016 marked the first year that the Authority operated as a District and not the traditional taxing 
authority of prior years. Per legislative changes in August of 2014 (MGL Chapter 291 of the Acts of 2014) real 
estate, personal property, and motor vehicle excise taxes for the development formerly known as the NAS (Navy 
Air Station) South Weymouth are now collected directly by the three host communities (Weymouth, Rockland, and 
Abington) and no longer by the SRA. Public safety and education are no longer contracted services by the SRA and 
are also provided by the host communities. 

 

The SRA had an approved district tax rate of .50 per $1,000 of value with fiscal year 2018 Certified Values 
equaling $262,537,190 resulting in a $131,268 district levy. This district tax rate is added to the respective tax rates 
of the individual towns within which the property is located.  The fiscal year 2018 general fund operating budget 
was approved at $2,168,360, of which debt service comprised $1,133,084 or approximately 52%. The debt is raised 
through pledged revenue and special assessments tied to only specific properties that are serviced with related 
infrastructure in parcels known as FOST 1 & FOST 2.  Pursuant to the latest Distribution and Development 
Agreement (DDA), fund balance reserves, which are certified by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue as free 
cash, are pledged to the greater of 20% of the prior year’s certification or $350,000 until the certified Free Cash 
reaches $500,000 or less, at which point it is no longer used.  The Master Developer fees are the final component 
utilized for the shortfall between those budgeted revenues and the appropriated expenditures. 

 

Tax Rate 

Tax rates are set for the SRA in a manner consistent with all other Cities and Towns within the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. Tax rates are approved by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue based upon all revenues 
including tax receivables. The tax recapitulation (RECAP) requires reporting of all anticipated income and all 
authorized expenditures for a given year. This calculation yields a tax rate. With the 2014 Legislation (effective for 
Fiscal 2016) there was a major shift in the governmental costs directly to the Towns, which resulted in the 
correlated reduction in the levy.  The historic tax rates for the SRA, demonstrative of this shift, are listed below: 
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Tax Rate as approved by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue 

Class FY2018 FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011 FY2010 FY2009 

Residential  $      0.50   $      0.50   $      0.54   $     11.39   $    13.47   $     13.26   $     12.89   $     11.90   $     11.78   $   20.06  

Open Space  $           -     $         -     $           -     $     22.12   $    13.47   $     13.26   $     12.89   $     11.90   $     11.78   $   20.06  

Commercial  $      0.50   $      0.50   $      0.54   $     22.12   $    30.73   $     26.35   $     23.89   $     17.70   $     17.47   $   20.06  

Personal Property  $      0.50   $      0.50   $      0.54   $     22.12   $    30.73   $     26.35   $     23.89   $     17.70   $     17.47   $   20.06  

 
 

In 2010, the Board of Assessors recommended, and the Board of Directors approved a tax shift whereby the 
commercial taxpayers bear more of property tax burden than does the residential taxpayer. By so doing, the tax rate 
for the SRA is more in line with that of the Town of Weymouth. It was determined that since the property being 
sold was located in Weymouth that this approach to the tax shift was reasonable. 

 
By way of comparison, the following is a listing of the 2018 tax rates for the Southfield Communities: 

 
a. Abington: Residential and Commercial rate: $17.82 
b. Rockland: Residential and Commercial rate: $18.22 
c. Weymouth: Residential Rate: $12.50 

Commercial Rate: $19.67 
 

Please refer to the previous page for information on Legislative Changes that affected the SRA where taxes are now 
the responsibility of the host communities. 

 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The following table illustrates summary financial activity associated with the Authority’s governmental activities 
and business-type activities. Certain current year net position amounts have been reclassified to correspond with the 
current year presentation. Details associated with these restatements have been made in the Notes to the financial 
statements. Prior year amounts have not been restated for the purposes of these summarized schedules. Previous 
years amounts have been reflected for fiscal years back to fiscal year 2015. 
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Governmental activities 

 
 

 2018  2017  2016  2015 

Assets:        
Current assets  $   2,668,407    $   3,260,819    $ 10,721,979    $   5,149,515  

Capital assets     39,869,462       49,244,757       44,516,287       46,199,502  

Total assets     42,537,869       52,505,576       55,238,266       51,349,017  
        
Deferred outflows of resources:        

Deferred outflows of resources  
   related to pensions          193,787            367,929            100,360              28,014  

        
Liabilities:        

Current liabilities       1,960,402         1,804,142         2,474,509         2,645,449  

Noncurrent liabilities       1,255,092         1,350,935            955,401            914,912  

Current debt          200,000            150,000            100,000              50,000  

Noncurrent debt     11,700,000       12,250,000       12,400,000       12,500,000  

Total liabilities     15,115,494       15,555,077       15,929,910       16,110,361  
        
Deferred inflows of resources:        

Deferred outflows of resources 
   related to pensions          223,831             28,540                     -                       -    

 
Net Position:        

Net investment in capital  
   assets     28,240,876       36,844,757       32,016,287       33,649,502  

Restricted            58,194            621,414            621,414            449,180  

Unrestricted         (906,739)         (176,283)        6,771,015         1,167,988  

Total net position  $ 27,392,331    $ 37,289,888    $ 39,408,716    $ 35,266,670  

        
 

Net Position 
 

By far the largest portion of the Authority’s net position is reflected in net investment in capital assets, net of any 
outstanding debt or resources used in acquisition of those assets. The Authority’s primary capital assets are related to 
land, and infrastructure. Although the Authority’s investment in capital assets is net of related debt, it should be 
noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. The net investment in capital assets decreased significantly 
from the previous years due to the Authority’s restatement of beginning balances for the transfer of the completed 
Multimodal Access Project to the Commonwealth. 
 
The Authority’s unrestricted net position deficit of $906,000 is primarily a function of the required reporting of 
noncurrent liabilities associated with estimated liabilities for the Authority’s net pension liability of $646,000 and 
net OPEB liability of $593,000.  
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Revenues, Expenses, Transfers 
 

        
 2018  2017  2016  2015 

Program revenues:        
Charges for services  $                  -    $        55,741    $          2,012    $        48,739  
Operating grants and  
   contributions          476,870        
Capital grants and contributions            131,364         7,000,884            301,252  

General revenues:        
Real estate and personal  
   property taxes          101,922              52,862              87,544         2,538,344  
Developer/entitlement fees          239,729            226,954              17,658              77,145  
Pledged revenues and special 
   assessments       1,153,441         1,125,000            997,625            450,000  

Other revenue            25,807            447,425              98,610            139,817  
Total revenues       1,997,769         2,039,346         8,204,333         3,555,297  

        
Expenses:        

Board of Directors            68,462              89,373              74,972              92,720  
Chief Executive Officer          148,379            165,039            134,643            221,843  
Finance            91,521           170,495           111,749           219,857  
Solicitor            62,605           152,983           240,171           393,320  
Information systems            49,521              47,538              49,053                9,896  
Planning board          186,963            322,024            170,524            128,111  
Pension, benefits, and insurance          198,507            189,120            174,702            372,945  
Education                366,000  
Maintenance of buildings               7,483              12,149              24,150              21,847  
Police and fire inspections                11,873            365,016  
Building inspections                    3,983  
Department of Public Works              5,202            119,944            280,562            314,878  
East West Parkway              5,000        
Parkway maintenance          324,724        
Route 18 improvements          138,846              22,868            129,285            134,266  
Debt service          922,717            963,553            969,898            978,981  

Depreciation       1,632,206         1,903,088         1,690,705         1,690,425  
Total expenses       3,842,136         4,158,174         4,062,287         5,314,088  

        
Excess (deficiency) before 
   transfers     (1,844,367)      (2,118,828)        4,142,046       (1,758,791) 

        
Transfers                      -                        -                         -            (153,203) 
        
Change in net position     (1,844,367)      (2,118,828)        4,142,046       (1,911,994) 
        
Net position - beginning, restated     29,236,698       40,784,041       36,641,995       38,553,989  

Net position - ending  $ 27,392,331    $ 38,665,213    $ 40,784,041    $ 36,641,995  
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Business-type activities: 

 

Enterprise Fund: Water & Sewer 
 

The SRA supplied its customers with water supply and sewer disposal through a contractual agreement with the 
Town of Weymouth through October of 2017, at which point the Chairman of the Board of Directors reached a 
verbal agreement for Weymouth to take over water/sewer revenue billing, collection and maintenance. The SRA 
previously adopted MGL c.44 section 53F ½ of the MGL’s for water and sewer activities and maintained that 
structure until Weymouth assumed billing responsibilities. Revenues collected were dedicated solely to offset 
operating expenditures. Accordingly, any excess balances at year-end remains with the fund.  The SRA and the 
Town of Weymouth are continuing this agreement through the release date of these financial statements.  A more 
comprehensive agreement, integrating major infrastructure requirements and the financing thereof, will be addressed 
as the SRA, Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and local surrounding Towns finalize the infrastructure plan. 
 
Fiscal year 2018 charges for services totaled $442,556, compared to fiscal year17 charges for services of $909,000, 
due to the assumption of billing by the Town of Weymouth. Operating expenses totaled approximately $496,976 
yielding a negative change in net position of $54,420 for the year. The ending net position of the fund totaled 
approximately $855,125. Of this amount $8,000 was appropriated from this balance to support, water testing, within 
the fiscal year 2019 budget. As of June 30, 2018, the SRA retains all legal responsibility of providing safe potable 
water to Union Point, however all new billing/revenues and maintenance are being handled by the Town of 
Weymouth until a formal comprehensive agreement is reached. 
 
The business-type activities are summarized below. Given the transfer of water sewer billing, collection and other 
duties have been transferred, allocated obligations and amounts associated with net pension liability and other 
postemployment benefit liabilities have been restated to governmental activities. Prior year amounts have not been 
restated in the following tables. 
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 2018  2017  2016  2015 

Assets:        
Current assets  $ 832,543    $ 885,219    $ 670,399    $ 569,873  

Capital assets       23,340         24,326         25,312         26,298  
Total assets     855,883       909,545       695,711       596,171  

        
Deferred outflows of resources:        

Deferred outflows of resources  
   related to pensions         14,918           5,226              166  

        
Liabilities:        

Current liabilities            525           18,951              798  

Noncurrent liabilities                 -           70,590         60,696         29,753  
Total liabilities            525         70,590         79,647         30,551  

        
Deferred inflows of resources:        

Deferred outflows of resources  
   related to pensions           1,157      

        
Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets       23,340        24,326        25,312        26,298  

Unrestricted      831,785      828,390      595,978      539,488  

Total net position  $ 855,125    $ 852,716    $ 621,290    $ 565,786  
        
Program revenues:        

Charges for services  $ 417,831    $ 589,082    $ 583,883    $ 381,705  
Connection fees       24,725       319,613         64,371    

General revenues:        
Unrestricted investment income                 -             3,725           2,671           2,403  

Total revenues     442,556       912,420       650,925       384,108  
        
Expenses:        

Water and sewer     496,976       680,994       595,421       318,591  
        

Excess (deficiency) before transfers      (54,420)      231,426         55,504         65,517  
        
Transfers                 -                    -                    -         153,203  
        
Change in net position      (54,420)      231,426         55,504       218,720  
        
Net position - beginning     909,545       621,290       565,786       347,066  

Net position - ending  $ 855,125    $ 852,716    $ 621,290    $ 565,786  
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Financial Analysis of the SRA’s Major Governmental Funds 
As noted earlier, the SRA uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. 
 
Government Funds. The focus of the SRA’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the SRA’s financing requirements. Unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the year. 
 
As of the end of the current year, governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $1.1 
million, a decrease of approximately $700,000 from the prior year. The decrease was due to the 
budgeted use of $421,000 of reserve funds as revenue per the DDA and the mandatory redemption of 
outstanding bonds aggregating $350,000.  
 
Major Governmental Funds:  
 
General Fund 
The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current year, the unassigned fund 
balance of the general fund was $37,000 which represents 1.5% of total general fund expenditures. 
The general fund balance decreased by $360,000 during fiscal year 2018 mainly due to the planned 
use of reserves. 
 
Reserve Fund 
The reserve fund established pursuant to trust agreement which was established upon issuance of 
2010A infrastructure development bonds issued in 2010. During fiscal year 2018 there was a 
mandatory bond redemption aggregating $350,000. Remaining $250,000 balance in this fund is 
required to be maintained in reserve for security to bondholders.  
 
Parkway Maintenance Fund 
The Parkway maintenance fund is a fund established to account for resources and activity associated 
with the maintenance (i.e. snow removal, landscaping, lighting) associated with the East-West 
Parkway, the portion of which is owned by the Authority. Maintenance costs are reimbursed to the 
Authority from the Landowners Association within the Union Point community.  
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
Actual revenues were less than the final budget by approximately $205,000.  Actual expenditures, 
including carryovers, were less than budgeted amounts by approximately $287,000. In June of 2018, 
the Board of Directors approved a transfer of $400,000 to the Authority’s general stabilization fund, 
which is included with the General fund pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles. See 
the budgetary information provided as required supplementary information following the Notes to 
the financial statements. 
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General Fund and Water/Sewer Free Cash 
Free Cash is the Commonwealth’s budgetary basis of accounting calculation of an amount similar to 
the unassigned fund balance at the end of each year and represents those funds which were not 
expended by the SRA. The SRA annually petitions the Massachusetts Department of Revenue to 
certify that the SRA has achieved a surplus and for permission to expend those funds during the 
succeeding year. 
 
Stabilization funds 
The Authority has established two stabilization accounts in accordance with MGL Chapter 40 
Section 5B. Amounts can be transferred to and utilized from these funds pursuant to Board of 
Director votes and provisions of law.   

 
General Stabilization 
The Board of Directors voted to increase the General Stabilization Account by $400,000 in June of 
2018 to begin addressing the reserve concerns within the State Auditor’s Audit Report. Since the 
fund does not have a specific, ongoing, dedicated revenue source, in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, the fund is included in unassigned fund balance of the General Fund. 
The account maintains a balance of $401,703 at June 30, 2018. Historical information related to this 
account is presented below. 

 
General Stabilization Account 

FY2018 FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013 FY2012 FY2011 FY2010 

Beginning balance  $      1,691   $      1,683   $      1,671   $  324,154   $  790,030   $  550,810   $    78,385   $    78,021   $               -  

Transfers In      400,000           486,313       472,000        177,842  

Transfers (Out)      (322,999)    (469,618)    (251,165)      (100,000) 

Interest income             12                8              12            516         3,742         4,072            425            364            179  

Ending balance  $401,703   $    1,691   $    1,683   $    1,671   $324,154   $790,030   $550,810   $  78,385   $  78,021  

 
Other Postemployment Benefits Stabilization 
GASB Statement 45, originally required state and local government employers to report 
postemployment benefits costs other than pensions (OPEB) costs and obligations. These statements 
require that the actuarial determined estimated net liability and costs associated with OPEB be 
computed and brought onto the governmental entity’s books and records.  

 

The Board of Directors understood its responsibility with respect this pronouncement. The SRA 
undertook a study that complies with this reporting requirement. As the SRA has fewer than 100 
participants covered under the plan, it is eligible for the alternative measurement method of 
reporting. The SRA Board of Directors established a separate stabilization fund in 2013 for the 
specific purpose of accumulating and holding such funds. Since the fund is not an irrevocable trust or 
equivalent arrangement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and 
Massachusetts General Laws, the fund is considered an assigned component of General fund fund 
balance for financial reporting purposes. The account maintains a balance of $298,900 at June 30, 
2018. Historical information related to the account on the Authority’s accounting ledger is presented 
below. 
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   OPEB Stabilization Account 

 FY2018 FY2017 FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 

Beginning balance  $  296,729   $  295,054   $  292,843   $  290,654   $  251,175  

Transfers In           37,562  

Interest income        2,171         1,675         2,211         2,189         1,917  

Ending balance  $298,900   $296,729   $295,054   $292,843   $290,654  

 
Debt Administration and Capital Assets 

 
The SRA issued approximately $12.6 million in infrastructure development bonds in 2011. Proceeds 
from the bonds were utilized for expenditures related to the purchase of various infrastructure 
improvements from the Developer (see below). In addition, the SRA authorized a note in the amount 
of $10 million (assigned to the Developer) for the purpose of purchasing the remaining Navy Land. 
Under a contractual agreement with the Developer, the Developer assumed the debt obligation and 
the SRA secured a 6-acre parcel of land that abuts the parkway; however, this security agreement and 
mortgage were nullified in Section 3.2.1 of the most recent DDA. 
 
Infrastructure Bond 

 
SRA issued the Series 2010A Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds in the amount of 
$12,550,000 on August 9, 2010 (the Bonds). The Bonds are secured by Assessments and Pledged 
Revenues levied on each Parcel of Assessed Property. The Assessments have been imposed upon the 
real property within the boundaries of the SRA and are limited to those properties transferred under 
FOST 1 and 2 (June, 2006). The Assessments are equal to the interest and principal on the Bonds and 
bonds expected to be issued in the future and estimated administrative expenses related to the bonds. 
The Assessment Roll is updated each Tax Year. There was no Assessment for 2011. This was the 
first such bond authorized in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 
 
The first payment for which assessments were to be collected under the bond was due and paid on 
August 1, 2012 (fiscal year 2013) as reserves were held by a third party for the semi-annual debt 
service for 2011 and for 2012. The SRA collects assessments and pledged revenues through the tax 
levy and collection process of each town for properties included in FOST 1 and 2 for this debt 
service. The first special assessment was raised on property owners within FOST 1 and FOST 2 in 
2013. Furthermore, the assessment, in accord with the Bond Agreements, was assessed on only those 
owners of unimproved land. The Special Assessment on the undeveloped parcels were $436,905 in 
2018. The remaining portion of the Bond is raised through Pledged Revenue from the Town’s based 
on the same parcels within Fost 1 and Fost 2 and is taken directly from the Town’s taxes on those 
parcels. 
 
Capital assets 
 
The Authority reported capital assets net of accumulated depreciation of $39.9 million for its 
governmental activities and $23,000 for its business-type activities at June 30, 2018. The change 
from the prior year capital assets related to depreciation expense of $1.6 million and $986, 
respectively. 
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CONTINGENT LIABILITY 
 

East West Parkway Bond 
 

The SRA, utilizing a quasi-grant from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, constructed the East 
West Parkway. The following is a brief synopsis of the key terms of the Amended and Restated 
Memorandum of Agreement for the Implementation of Transportation Improvements for the 
Redevelopment of the South Weymouth Naval Air Station (the Implementation MOA), dated as of 
March 4, 2010, by and between the Massachusetts Department of Transportation (MassDOT) and 
SRA. 
 
This summary is not intended to be a complete description of all the terms and conditions of the 
Implementation MOA, and the terms and conditions of the Implementation MOA shall be controlling 
in the event of any legal issue arising under the Implementation MOA. 

 
1. The Implementation MOA addresses the procurement, permitting, design, right of way 

acquisition, construction and operation of the Parkway and the East Side Connectivity 
Improvements. 

 
2. Once completed, the portion of the Parkway within the Base will be owned and 

maintained by SRA and the portions of the Parkway outside the Base will be owned 
and maintained by the respective Towns. The portion of Route 18 to be widened 
between Route 3 in Weymouth and Route 139 in Abington will continue to be owned 
and maintained by the Commonwealth. 

3. The MOA requires that the redevelopment of the NAS will generate annual New State 
Tax Revenues (by definition calculated as total sales taxes, personal income tax and 
hotel tax revenues generated by development at SRA) will be at least 1.5 times greater 
than the annual Debt Service Costs of the Parkway Bonds. 

 
4. If the cumulative amount of New State Tax Revenues received in any fiscal year is less 

than the debt service for the Parkway Bond, the SRA is required to make a Deficiency 
Payment to the Commonwealth of MA in order to reimburse the Commonwealth for 
the portion of the Debt Service Costs not covered by the New State Tax Revenues. 
This contingent liability will exist annually for the life of the issued bond. 

 
In December 2014, the Secretary of Administration and Finance for the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (Secretary) agreed to amend the MOA to allow for Deficiency Payments attributable 
to fiscal years 2013 to 2018 to be deferred until June 2020. The Secretary is authorized to extend this 
deferral to additional fiscal years if the Secretary determines that this deferral is fiscally responsible 
and serves the public interest. At June 30, 2015 the SRA accrued a liability, Due to the 
Commonwealth, in the amount of $1,375,000 for fiscal year 2013 that is being deferred as described 
above. 
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Next year’s budget 

 
 The Board of Directors has adopted an operating budget for fiscal year 2019 of $2.2 

million inclusive of approximately $1.2 million of debt service associated with the 2010A 
infrastructure development bonds. 

 As of the date of these financial statements, a fiscal year 2019 tax rate has not been 
submitted or approved by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue. Submission and 
approval is generally required by December 31 annually. 

 
Requests for Information 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Southfield Redevelopment 
Authority’s finances for all those with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions concerning 
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should 
be addressed to the Executive Director, 223 Shea Memorial Drive, South Weymouth, MA 02190. 

 
******** 
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Primary Government

 

Governmental 

Activities 

 Business-type 

Activities  Total 

ASSETS
Current:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,524,475$         823,543$           3,348,018$       
Accounts receivable, net of uncollectable 113,932              8,767                 122,699            
Prepaid expenses 30,000                                      30,000              

Total current assets 2,668,407           832,310             3,500,717         

Noncurrent:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 39,869,462         23,340               39,892,802       

Total assets 42,537,869         855,650             43,393,519       

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Associated with pensions 193,787                                    193,787            

Total deferred outflows of resources 193,787                                    193,787            

LIABILITIES
Current:

Accounts payable 175,077              525                    175,602            
Due to Commonwealth of Massachusetts 1,375,325           1,375,325         
Accrued interest expense 380,000              380,000            
Bonds payable 200,000              200,000            
Deposits held 30,000                                      30,000              

Total current liabilities 2,160,402           525                    2,160,927         

Noncurrent:
Bonds payable 11,700,000         11,700,000       
Compensated absences 15,400                15,400              
Other postemployment benefits liability 593,166              593,166            
Net pension liability 646,526                                    646,526            

Total noncurrent liabilities 12,955,092                               12,955,092       

Total liabilities 15,115,494         525                    15,116,019       

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Associated with pensions 223,831                                    223,831            

Total deferred inflows of resources 223,831                                    223,831            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 28,240,876         23,340               28,264,216       
Restricted 58,194                                      58,194              
Unrestricted (906,739)            831,785             (74,954)             

Total net position 27,392,331$       855,125$           28,247,456$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Functions/Programs  Expenses 

Charges for 

Services

Operating Grants 

and Contributions

Capital Grants and 

Contributions

Governmental 

Activities

Business-type 

Activities Total

Governmental activities:

Board of Directors:

Salaries 41,993$                   $                             $                             $                                  (41,993)$                       $                              (41,993)$                   

Expenses 26,469                    (26,469)                       (26,469)                     

Chief Executive Officer:                                  

Salaries 107,423                  (107,423)                     (107,423)                   

Expenses 40,956                    (40,956)                       (40,956)                     

Finance:                                  

Salaries 67,228                    (67,228)                       (67,228)                     

Expenses 24,293                    (24,293)                       (24,293)                     

Solicitor 62,605                    (62,605)                       (62,605)                     

Information systems expenses 49,521                    (49,521)                       (49,521)                     

Planning Board:                                  

Salaries 124,132                  (124,132)                     (124,132)                   

Expenses 62,831                    (62,831)                       (62,831)                     

Pension, benefits and insurance 198,507                  (198,507)                     (198,507)                   

Maintenance of buildings 7,483                      (7,483)                         (7,483)                       
Public works expense 5,202                      (5,202)                         (5,202)                       
East West Parkway - Rockland to Trotter 5,000                      (5,000)                         (5,000)                       
Parkway maintenance 324,724                  291,535                  (33,189)                       (33,189)                     

Route 18 improvements 138,846                  185,335                  46,489                         46,489                      

Interest on debt service 922,717                  (922,717)                     (922,717)                   
Unallocated depreciation 1,632,206                                                                                                                  (1,632,206)                                                   (1,632,206)                

Total governmental activities 3,842,136                                              476,870                                                       (3,365,266)                                                   (3,365,266)                

Business-type activities: (3,365,266)              
Water/Sewer 496,976                  442,556                                                                                                                          (54,420)                                                     

Total business-type activities 496,976                  442,556                                                                                                                          (54,420)                                                     

Total primary government 4,339,112$             442,556$                476,870$                 $                                  (3,365,266)                  (54,420)                    (3,365,266)                

General revenues and pledged revenues and assessments:
Pledged revenues and special assessments 1,153,441                    1,153,441                 
Developer fees 239,729                       239,729                    
Real estate and personal property taxes 101,922                       101,922                    
Other 25,807                                                      25,807                      

           Total 1,520,899                                                 2,674,340                 

Change in net position (1,844,367)                  (54,420)                    (1,898,787)                

Net position - beginning of year, restated 29,236,698                  909,545                    30,146,243               

Net position - end of year 27,392,331$                855,125$                  28,247,456$             

Net (Expenses) Revenues

and Changes in Net PositionProgram Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 General
Fund 

 Reserve
Fund 

 Parkway 
Maintenance 

Fund 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
ASSETS

Cash 2,161,640$         250,000$               $                           112,835$            2,524,475$        
Interfund Receivable 1,958                                                                                                         1,958                 
Receivables                                                          113,932                                           113,932             
Prepaid expenses                                                                                        30,000                30,000               

Total assets 2,163,598$         250,000$              113,932$              142,835$            2,670,365$        

LIABILITIES

Accounts and other payables 29,516$               $                          111,974$              33,587$              175,077$           
Interfund Payable                                                          1,958                                               1,958                 
Due to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 1,375,325                                                                                                 1,375,325          
Deposits held                                                                                        30,000                30,000               

Total liabilities 1,404,841                                        113,932                63,587                1,582,360          

FUND BALANCES

Restricted 60,307                 250,000                                              25,445                335,752             
Assigned 661,509                                                                         54,163                715,672             
Unassigned 36,941                                                                            (360)                    36,581               

Total fund balances 758,757              250,000                                              79,248                1,088,005          

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund 2,163,598$         250,000$              113,932$              142,835$            2,670,365$        

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
   Total fund balances of governmental funds 1,088,005$        

   Capital assets used in governmental activities are not resources and therefore are not reported in the funds 39,869,462        

   Certain changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension expense over future periods. The net effect 
of theses changes of deferred outflows of resources or (deferred inflows of resources) relate to pension (30,044)              

   Long-term bonds are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds (11,900,000)      

   Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and therefore not reported in the funds (380,000)            

   Net other postemployment benefit liability is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds (593,166)            

   Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and therefore it is not reported in the funds (646,526)            

   Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period therefore are not reported in the funds (15,400)              

   Net position of governmental activities 27,392,331$      

SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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 General
 Fund 

 Reserve
Fund 

 Parkway 
Maintenance 

Fund 

 Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

 Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
Revenues:

Pledged revenue and assessments 1,153,441$         $                       $                        $                       1,153,441$        
Real estate and personal property tax 101,922                                                                              101,922             
Developer fees 239,729                                                                              239,729             
Intergovernmental                                                    166,917             166,917             
Parkway maintenance reimbursements                                                    309,953                                       309,953             
Project review fees                                                                                                                                  
Interest income 25,739                                                                                            25,739               
Other revenue 68                                                                                                   68                      

Total revenues 1,520,899                                   309,953             166,917             1,997,769          

Expenditures:
Board of Directors:

Salaries 41,993                                                                                            41,993               
Expenses 26,469                                                                                            26,469               

Chief Executive Officer:                           
Salaries 107,423                                                                                          107,423             
Expenses 40,956                                                                                            40,956               

Finance:                           
Salaries 67,228                                                                                            67,228               
Expenses 24,293                                                                                            24,293               

Solicitor 62,605                                                                                            62,605               
Information systems expenses 49,521                                                                                            49,521               
Planning Board:                           

Salaries 124,132                                                                                          124,132             
Expenses 62,831                                                                                            62,831               

Pensions, benefits, and insurance 168,133                                                                                          168,133             
Maintenance of buildings 7,483                                                                                              7,483                 
Public works expenses 5,202                                                                                              5,202                 
East West Parkway - Rockland to Trotter Road 5,000                 5,000                 
Parkway maintenance                                                    324,724                                       324,724             
Route 18 improvements                                                                              138,846             138,846             
Debt service costs 1,093,134          350,000                                                                1,443,134          

Total expenditures 1,881,403          350,000            324,724             143,846             2,699,973          

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 21,414               21,414               
Transfers (out)                           (21,414)                                                                (21,414)              

Total other financing sources (uses)                           (21,414)                                      21,414                                         

Net change in fund balance (360,504)            (371,414)          (14,771)              44,485               (702,204)            

Fund balances - beginning of year, restated 1,119,261          621,414            14,771               34,763               1,790,209          

Fund balances - end of year 758,757$           250,000$           $                       79,248$             1,088,005$        

SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances in

Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (702,204)$         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Depreciation expense (1,632,206)        

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however,
has any effect on net position. 

Bond principal payments 150,000            
Mandatory bond redemption 350,000            

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in the governmental funds.

Net change in compensated absences accrual (1,739)               
Net change in accrued interest on long-term debt 20,417              
Net change in other postemployment benefits accrual (40,925)             
Net change in deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources related to pensions (369,433)           
Net change in net pension liability 381,723            

Change in net position of governmental activities (1,844,367)$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2018

 Business-type 
Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

 Water/Sewer Fund 

ASSETS

Current:
Cash 823,543$                 
Receivables, net of uncollectable 8,767                       

Total current assets 832,310                   

Noncurrent:
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 23,340                     

Total  assets 855,650                   

LIABILITIES

Current:
Accounts payable 525                          

Total  liabilities 525                          

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 23,340                     
Unrestricted 831,785                   

Total net position 855,125$                 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

 Business-type 
Activities 

Enterprise Funds 

 Water/Sewer Fund 

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services 416,618$                
Connection fees 24,725
Interest & penalties 1,213                      

Total operating revenue 442,556                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Water and sewer expenses 495,990
Depreciation expense 986                         

Total operating expenses 496,976                  

Change in net position (54,420)                   

Net position - beginning of year, restated 909,545                  

Net position - end of year 855,125$                

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Business-type 
Activities 

Enterprise Funds

Water/Sewer Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users 451,074$                 
Payments for interest and penalties 1,213                       
Payments for water/sewer usage (467,437)                  
Payments to other vendors (8,029)                      
Payments for interfund services (20,000)                    

       Net cash from operating activities (43,179)                    

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 866,722                   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 823,543$                 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash from
operating activities:

Operating (loss) (54,420)$                  
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

from operating activities:
Depreciation 986                          
Change in accounts receivables 9,730                       
Change in accounts payable 525                          

Total adjustments 11,241                     

Net cash from operating activities (43,179)$                  

SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Agency Funds

ASSETS
Cash 144,812$             

Total assets 144,812$             

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 26,810$               
Performance and other deposits 111,367               
Other 6,635                   

Total liabilities 144,812$             

               SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

                  June 30, 2018
                   Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note 1 – Organization and Reporting Entity 
 
A. Organization 
 
On August 20, 2014, the Governor of Massachusetts signed into law legislation to promote the sustainable 
economic development of the former South Weymouth Naval Air Station for the benefit of the Towns of 
Abington, Rockland, and Weymouth, the NAS South Weymouth Region and the Commonwealth (Chapter 
291 of the Acts of 2014, the Act). The former Naval Air Station (approximately 1,450 acres) is being 
developed into a community to be named Union Point (changed by the master developer from Southfield in 
July 2016). The Act reconstituted the South Shore Tri-Town Development Corporation (SSTTDC) as the 
Southfield Redevelopment Authority (Authority), a body politic and corporate whose purpose is to carry out 
the Act. The Act reinforces municipal control over land use and development decisions and strengthens the 
alignment of interest between the Authority, the towns and the master developer. Additionally, the Act 
shifted financial obligations for water and wastewater development to the project’s master developer.  The 
obligation of the Authority and the Developer are conducted in accordance with the Act, Disposition and 
Development Authority (DDA) and other agreements between the Authority, the Navy, the Developer.  The 
most recent DDA (Third Amended and Restated) was dated June 2017. 
 
SSTTDC was a quasi-municipal entity, established on August 14, 1998 through its enabling legislation 
Chapter 301 of the Acts of 1998, as amended in August of 2008 in Chapter 303, Section 36. The purpose of 
the legislation was to promote the expeditious and orderly conversion and redevelopment of the closed Naval 
Air Station, located on approximately 1,450 acres in the Towns of Abington, Rockland and Weymouth, for 
nonmilitary purposes, including but not limited to, commercial, housing, industrial, institutional, educational, 
governmental, recreational, conservation or manufacturing uses. With the passing of the Act in 2014, the 
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, accountant, and the water/sewer superintendent were 
eliminated. 
 
The Act mandated that the SRA complete the following tasks to comply with the newly enacted legislation: 
 
 Tax Plan 
 Bond Indenture Certificate of Trustee 
 Redevelopment Plan 
 Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Memorandum of Agreement on Financing for the 

Parkway 
 Parkway Phase Two Financing Agreement 
 Amend Zoning By-Laws and Regulations 
 Amend Disposition and Development Agreement 

 
In March 2015, the Office of Economic Adjustment of the United States Department of Defense formally 
recognized the Southfield Redevelopment Authority (the Authority) as the Local Redevelopment Authority 
(LRA) for the purpose of implementing the redevelopment plan for the former NAS South Weymouth, and 
assuming said responsibility from the South Shore Tri-Town Development Corporation (SSTTDC). As such, 
the Authority satisfied all of its obligations under the Act and all of the Act’s provisions are in full force and 
effect.  
 
The Authority’s existence is limited by Statute. The Authority is a special purpose government that will 
dissolve pursuant to section 33 of the Act. During the period of existence, it has the ability to exercise most 
powers of a municipality on behalf of the three local Towns. After the termination of the Authority, the 
powers and duties assigned to the Authority will revert back to each of the three Towns by December 31, 
2065. 
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In May 2015, the Authority’s Board of Directors approved the transfer of the responsibilities of the master 
developer (LNR) to LStar Southfield, LLC (LStar) [the Developer], a subsidiary of LStar Management, LLC. 
 
B. Reporting Entity 
 
The Southfield Redevelopment Authority (the primary government) is governed by a (9) member Board of 
Directors, comprised of members appointed from the member towns, Southfield residents, and others. In 
February 2018, the Authority hired an executive director for the Authority and to serve as general counsel. 
 
The Board’s governance of the Authority is to ensure the development of the former Naval Air Station, with 
the master developer, LStar, and use of the associated land is carried out in compliance with the enabling 
legislation, zoning and land use by-laws and regulations and other agreements. 
 
Pursuant to the enabling legislation, the Authority has an (11) member advisory board which among other 
responsibilities, makes recommendations to the Authority on any budget, and makes recommendations to the 
governor, the General Court and the towns regarding the Authority, its programs, and the project. 
 
There are no component units of the Authority. The Authority belongs to two cost sharing groups for the 
purposes of providing pension benefits and health care benefits. Additional details of these cost sharing 
arrangements are described in these Notes. 
 
Note 2 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and by the Authority are presented below. 
 
A. Basis of Presentation 
 
Accounting policies and financial reporting practices for the Southfield Redevelopment Authority (the 
Authority) are prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor in accordance with the legislation. The 
accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements 
and Interpretations).  
 
Government-wide Statements 

 
In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, governmental columns are presented on a consolidated 
basis and are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets, 
receivables, deferred outflows of resources as well as deferred inflows of resources, and other liabilities, 
including noncurrent liabilities reported on a full accrual basis. The Authority’s net position is reported in 
three components - net investment in capital assets, restricted net position, and unrestricted net position. The 
Authority first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 

 
The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the Authority’s 
functions. Gross expenses (including depreciation) are reduced on the Statement of Activities by related 
program revenues, which consist of charges for services, operating grants, and capital grants. Program 
revenues must be directly associated with the function. Operating grants include operating-specific and 
discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific 
grants. Property taxes and developer fees received are considered general revenues. Pledged revenues and 
special assessments are specific revenues pursuant to land parcels and development within the former Naval 
Air Station and are dedicated solely to the payment of certain debt service incurred with the original 
establishment of the South Shore Tri-Town Development Corporation (SSTTDC). Additional disclosures are 
within these notes. 
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The net costs by function are normally covered by general revenue, with the specific exception of debt 
service which is covered by pledged revenues and special assessments. See additional disclosures in these 
Notes. 

 
Certain costs, such as pensions, benefits and insurance are not allocated among the Authority’s functions and 
are reported as a separate line in the Statement of Activities. Interest on general long-term liabilities is 
considered an indirect expense and is reported in the Statement of Activities as a separate line. Depreciation 
expense has been reported separately as an unallocated expense. 
 
The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Authority as an entity and the change in the 
Authority’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The financial transactions of the Authority are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. 
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, 
liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by 
generic classification within the financial statements. 
 
The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-type 
activities categories. GASB pronouncements set forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets and 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the 
determination of major funds. The Authority may electively add funds, as major funds, which have specific 
community focus. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements titled 
Other Governmental Funds. 
 
The Authority’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (private 
purpose, other post-employment benefit trust funds, and agency funds). Since by definition these assets are 
being held for the benefit of a third party (developers, others) and cannot be used to address activities or 
obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

 
The following describes the fund types that may be used by the Authority:  

 
Governmental Funds: 
 
The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources) rather 
than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds reported by the Authority: 

 
Major Funds: 

 
 General fund is the primary operating fund of the Authority. It is used to account for and report all 

financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.  
 

 Reserve fund is a fund established pursuant to trust agreement which was established upon issuance 
of 2010A infrastructure development bonds issued in 2010. The balance in this fund is required to be 
maintained in reserve for security to bondholders. 
 

 Parkway Maintenance fund is a fund established to account for resources and activity associated with 
the maintenance (i.e. snow removal, landscaping, lighting) associated with the East West Parkway, 
which is owned by the Authority. Maintenance costs are reimbursed to the Authority from the 
Landowners Association within the Union Point community. 
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Other governmental funds consist of other funds that are aggregated and presented in the other governmental 
funds column on the governmental funds financial statements. These funds are used to account for and report 
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified 
purposes. The Authority maintains several funds which account for resources associated with state roadway 
improvements (Route 18) and traffic study which are reimbursed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
and others. The Authority has reflected these funds within the other governmental funds.  
 
Proprietary Funds: 
 
The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net 
position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds (enterprise fund) of 
the Authority: 
  

 Water/sewer fund is used to account for the water and sewer activities of the Authority. 
 
The Southfield Redevelopment Authority provides Union Point residents with water supply and sewer 
disposal through a contractual agreement with the Town of Weymouth. The Authority had previously 
adopted Massachusetts General Law (MGL) Chapter 44, Section 53F1/2 for the establishment of an 
enterprise fund for water and sewer activities. Revenues collected are dedicated solely to offset operating 
expenses. 
 
In October 2017, the Town of Weymouth took over the billing and collections for all existing water and 
sewer customers at Union Point. As of June 30, 2018, the Authority still retains operational and maintenance 
responsibilities associated with those water and sewer activities. All collections currently are retained by the 
Town of Weymouth. 
 
Fiduciary Funds: 
 
Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are not 
available to support Authority activities. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in fiduciary net 
position and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds. The following is a 
description of the fiduciary funds of the Authority: 
 
 Agency funds are used to hold funds on behalf of parties other than the Authority. The District maintains 

funds for developers and others. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

 
B.  Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting  
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). Measurable means the amount of the 
transaction can be determined and available means collectible within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter (60 days) to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund 
liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when 
due, certain compensated absences, claims and judgments, and post-employment health care benefits, which 
are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with current expendable available 
resources.   
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C.  Fair Value Measurements  

The Authority measures assets and liabilities at fair value according to the hierarchy established by generally 
accepted accounting principles. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 
hierarchy is based upon valuation inputs, which are the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing an asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. The following are levels considered: 

 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the 
measurement date. 

 Level 2 inputs are directly observable for an asset or liability (including quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities), as well as inputs that are indirectly observable for the asset or liability. 

 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or a liability and are used only if relevant 
Level 1 or Level 2 inputs are not available. 

 
D.  Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

 
The Authority considers cash and cash equivalents (deposits) to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and 
certificates of deposit. The Authority maintains deposits in accordance with Massachusetts General Law and 
trust agreements. All of the Authority's investments are currently in government money market accounts. 
Therefore, the investments of the Authority have been reported as cash and cash equivalents. Additional 
disclosures are presented in these Notes. 
 
 
E.  Interfund Receivables and Payables 

 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as “due to 
and from other funds.” Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.”  
Long-term interfund loans (non-current portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” 
Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the 
Statement of Net Position. 
 
 
F.  Receivables 
 
Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received, net of an allowance for 
uncollectible amounts. Real estate property taxes are subject to lien, and accordingly are considered fully 
collectable. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the 
periodic aging of accounts receivable. The Authority considers all of its reported receivables collectible and 
does not report an allowance for uncollectible accounts.  
 
 
G.  Capital Assets  

 
The accounting treatment over property, plant, and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether they are 
reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
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Government-wide Statements 

 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for 
donated capital assets, donated works of art, historical treasurers and similar assets, which are recorded at 
their acquisition value (entry price) at the date of donation. The Authority defines capital assets, which 
includes land, leasehold improvements, vehicles, and as assets with an initial, individual cost of more the 
$1,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do 
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for 
capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
 
Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an expense in the Statement of Activities, with 
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets’ 
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by 
type of asset is as follows: 

 
 

 Leasehold improvements           7 years 
 Vehicles                     3-7 years 
 Machinery and equipment       3-7 years 
 Infrastructure          30 years 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

 
In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 

accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.  
 

 
H.  Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows 

 
Deferred outflows of resources, as applicable, represent a consumption of assets by the government that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. These deferred outflows of resources have a positive effect on net 
position and are reported after assets when applicable. Deferred inflows of resources, as applicable, represent 
the acquisition of assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. These deferred 
inflows of resources have a negative effect on net position and are reported after liabilities when applicable. 
These amounts are reported in government-wide and fund financial statements based upon the nature of the 
items.  
 

 I.  Liabilities 
 

Liabilities represent present obligations to sacrifice resources for which the government has little or no 
discretion to avoid. The primary focus is on the obligation for the government to perform. The accounting 
treatment for these obligations depends on whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund 
financial statements. 

 
Current liabilities are reported in both the fund and government-wide financial statements. Current liabilities 
represent obligations incurred in the operating cycle for acquisition goods, services, accruals for 
salaries/wages, vacation accruals, and other obligations due or generally expected to be liquidated within one 
year from the balance sheet date. Government-wide financial statements also report other current liabilities 
such as accrued interest, which is reported on a full accrual basis. 
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Generally, all noncurrent (long-term) liabilities are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements 
but are reported in the government-wide statements. Such obligations consist primarily of such obligations as 
bonds payable, compensated absences, other postemployment obligations and net pension obligations. 
 
J. Equity Classifications 
 
Government-wide Statements 

 
Equity is classified as net position in the government-wide financial statements. The Authority first utilizes 
restricted resources for appropriate activities prior to utilizing unrestricted resources. Net position is 
displayed in three components: 

 
 Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, 

net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, notes or 
other borrowings and other amounts that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those 
assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position.  
 

 Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. These assets may be 
restricted by constraints placed on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

 Unrestricted—This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred 
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in 
the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net 
position. 

 
Fund Financial Statements 

  
Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified based on the extent 
to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the 
funds can be spent. The Authority’s spending policy is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by 
committed, assigned, and then unassigned fund balance. Most governmental funds were designated for one 
purpose at the time of their creation. Therefore, any expenditure made from the fund will be allocated to the 
applicable fund balance classifications in accordance with the aforementioned spending policy. The general 
fund and certain other funds may have more than one purpose. 

 
Fund balance can be classified in the following components: 
 

 Nonspendable fund balance – consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

 
 Restricted fund balance – consists of amounts upon which constraints have been placed on 

their use either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants, trust 
agreements), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; (b) 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

 Committed fund balance – consist of amounts which can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by the Authority’s highest level of decision making, the 
Board of Directors. Any modification or rescission must also be made by District School 
Committee vote. 
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 Assigned fund balance – consist of amounts that are constrained by the Authority’s intent to 
be used for a specific purpose. Intent is expressed by (a) the governing body itself, or (b) a 
body, or official to which the governing body has delegated the authority to assign amounts 
to be used for specific purposes. Amounts are assigned based upon vote of the Board of 
Directors, or through the Authority’s normal procurement processes.  

 
 Unassigned fund balance – represents the residual classification for the remaining fund 

balance. It represents amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes. 

 
K. Pensions 

 
Plymouth County Retirement Association (System)  

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Plymouth County Retirement Association (PCRA) and additions to/deductions from the Systems’ fiduciary 
net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the System. For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

L. Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

The net OPEB liability associated with the Authority’s other postemployment benefit plan (Plan) is measured 
on an alternative method, utilizing certain actuarial assumptions. The Authority currently maintains benefits 
under this Plan on a “pay-as-you-go” basis. The Plan is not maintained pursuant to a trust agreement or 
equivalent arrangement. Accordingly, no separate financial statements are maintained for the Plan. 
Additional disclosures related to this obligation are contained in these Notes.  

M. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results 
may differ from those estimates. 

N.  Total Columns 

The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated financial 
information. The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate 
financial analysis. Data in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information. 

Note 3 – Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 
 

A   Budget Process 
 
The Board of Directors annually determine the operating budgets for the General Fund and 
enterprise fund of the Authority. Pledged revenues and special assessments associated with the debt 
service of Authority’s 2010 Infrastructure Development Bonds are assessed to the member towns.  A 
District tax (ad valorem tax) is approved by the Massachusetts Department of Revenue on an annual 
basis and is to be assessed by each member town, on the tax bill within that town and remitted to the 
Authority on a quarterly basis. For fiscal year 2018 this tax was $.50. Additionally, pursuant to the 
most recent Disposition and Development Agreement (DDA) dated June 2017, the Developer is 
required to provide annual fees to support any budgetary deficiencies pursuant to the agreement 
(DDA). Pursuant to the enabling legislation, the Authority has the ability to raise any amount of 
taxes to meet its financial obligations. 
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B.  Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

 
Budget for the General fund is prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). A comparison of the General Fund budget to 
actual amounts on a “budgetary basis” is provided as required supplementary information to provide 
a meaningful comparison with the budget. The proprietary fund budget is not required to be 
presented. 

 
C.  Fund Equities 

 
Operations of the Authority for the fiscal 2018 were funded in accordance with the enabling 
legislation and Massachusetts General Laws. The District classifies fund equity in the fund financial 
statements as either nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes. As of 
June 30, 2018, the classification of the Authority’s fund balances can be detailed as follows:   

 
 

    Other  

  General   Reserve   Governmental  

  Fund   Fund   Funds  

 Restricted:     
     Debt service   $                    60,307   $                  250,000   $                    21,414  

     Traffic study                                  -                                  -                           4,031  

          subtotal                         60,307                       250,000                         25,445  

    
 Assigned:     
     Next year's budget                       350,000    
     OPEB                       298,900    
     Other                         12,609    

     Parkway extension                                  -                                  -                         54,163  

          subtotal                       661,509                                  -                         54,163  

    

 Unassigned                         36,941                                  -                            (360) 

      Total fund balance   $                  758,757   $                  250,000   $                    79,248  
 
 

At June 30, 2018, the Authority has fund balance of $298,900 which has been assigned for other 
postemployment benefits. These amounts are although assigned for this function, are not maintained 
in an irrevocable trust or equivalent arrangement, and accordingly such assignment could be changed 
by the Board of Directors. An additional amount of available fund balance has been assigned to fund 
the fiscal year 2019 operating budget. 
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D. Net Position  
 

The following tables illustrate the components of the Authority’s net investment in capital 
assets of $28.2 million and restricted net position of $58,000 at June 30, 2018. The residual 
deficit net position of $907,000 is reported as unrestricted. 

 
Net investment in capital assets 

 
  
 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation   $   39,869,462  
 Outstanding balance of 2010A Infrastructure bonds      (11,900,000) 
 Reserve fund             250,000  

 Redemption fund               21,414  

     Net investment in capital assets   $   28,240,876  
 

Restricted net position 
 
 

Parkway Extension   $          54,163  

Traffic study                 4,031  

       Total restricted net position   $          58,194  
 
Note 4 – Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 
 
Statute requires the Authority to comply with Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 55, which 
places certain limitations on cash deposits and investments available to the Authority. Authorized deposits 
include demand deposits, term deposits, and certificates of deposit in trust companies, national banks, 
savings banks, and certain other financial institutions. Deposits may not exceed certain levels without 
collateralization of the excess by the financial institution involved. The Authority may also invest in 
securities issued by or unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. Government or an agency thereof. The 
Authority may also invest in repurchase agreements guaranteed by such government securities with maturity 
dates of not more than ninety days from date of purchase. The Authority may invest in units of the 
Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT), an external investment pool managed by the Treasurer 
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Cash deposits are reported at carrying amount, which reasonably 
approximates fair value. Most cash and investments are pooled and is available for use by all funds. 
Restricted cash is disclosed below. All cash, restricted and each fund type’s portion of this pool is displayed 
on the balance sheets as “cash and cash equivalents.” The Authority has no formal depository and investment 
policies which address risks identified by Government Accounting Standards Board. The Authority monitors 
institutions through third party ratings. The Authority’s only investment as of June 30, 2018 consisted of 
government money market accounts maintained at Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., which have been classified as 
cash and cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes. 
 
At June 30, 2018, cash and cash equivalent deposits totaled $3.6 million and had a carrying amount of $3.5 
million. The difference between deposit amounts and carrying amounts represents outstanding checks. Of the 
bank balance, $2.2 million was exposed to custodial credit risk (uninsured). The Authority maintains 
$272,606 of restricted cash associated with governmental activities on deposit with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., 
in government money market funds, pursuant to the Trust Indenture dated August 1, 2010, associated with 
the Series 2010 Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A. These amounts are included in 
uninsured amounts. 
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 Note 5 – Receivables  
 

The Authority reports accounts receivables in the accompanying Statement of Net Position and Balance 
Sheet. The District tax (ad valorem tax) is assessed by each member towns to be remitted on a quarterly basis 
to the Authority. Accordingly, for fiscal year 2018, the Authority has not recorded any outstanding 
receivable associated with the District tax owed from the member towns. The Authority reports $113,932 of 
accounts receivable in the Parkway Maintenance fund which represents reimbursements due from the 
Landowners Association for maintenance costs pursuant to agreement as of June 30, 2018. These amounts 
have been recognized as revenue as they represent reimbursement of costs incurred. 

 
At June 30, 2018, the Authority reported receivables for the water and sewer enterprise fund of $8,787. 
Although the Town of Weymouth took over the billings and collections for existing water and sewer 
customers, the Authority has determined these amounts to be fully collectable.  
 
Note 6 – Capital assets 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ending June 30, 2018, is illustrated in the tables below. Certain beginning 
balances have been restated for infrastructure (multimodal access) which the Authority has determined to be 
the Commonwealth’s ownership and responsibility pursuant to the Act of 2014. 
 

  (restated)     
  Beginning     Ending  

 Governmental activities:   Balance   Increases   Decreases   Balance  

 Capital assets not being depreciated:  

      Land   $     225,300   $                    $                    $     225,300  

     
 Capital assets being depreciated:     
      Leasehold improvements            34,213              34,213  

      Machinery and equipment          200,966            200,966  

      Vehicles            24,570              24,570  

      Infrastructure:                          

       East West Parkway- Nonparticipating Agreement          992,640            992,640  

       Shea Drive/MGA- Series 2010A Infrastructure Bond     11,381,859       11,381,859  

       East West Parkway - Rockland to Trotter Road     36,591,679                      -                      -     36,591,679  

          subtotal     48,966,178                      -                      -     48,966,178  

      Total capital assets being depreciated     49,225,927                                                 49,225,927  

     
 Accumulated depreciation:      
      Leasehold improvements           (34,213)           (34,213) 

      Machinery and equipment         (200,966)         (200,966) 

      Vehicles           (24,570)           (24,570) 

      Infrastructure      (7,689,810)     (1,632,206)                     -     (9,322,016) 

      Total accumulated depreciation      (7,949,559)     (1,632,206)                     -     (9,581,765) 

 Total governmental activities capital assets, net   $41,501,668   $ (1,632,206)  $                 -   $39,869,462  
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Depreciation expense associated with the Authority’s infrastructure has been reported as a separate line 
(unallocated) on the Statement of Activities. 
 
 

  Beginning     Ending  

 Business-type activities - water & sewer:   Balance   Increases   Decreases   Balance  

     
 Capital assets being depreciated:      
      Infrastructure   $             29,594   $                      -   $                      -   $             29,594  

     
 Accumulated depreciation:      
      Infrastructure                  (5,268)                    (986)                          -                  (6,254) 

 Total business-type activities capital assets, net   $             24,326   $                (986)  $                      -   $             23,340  
 
 
 
Note 7 – Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
The following illustrates the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources associated with the 
Authority’s pension plan, which are reported in the government-wide financial statements as of June 30, 
2018.  Additional disclosures related to the pension plan are detailed in these Notes. 
 

Deferred outflows of resources:  
   Differences between expected and  
    actual experience  $                  14,075  
     
   Changes in proportion and differences  
    between employer contributions and  
    proportionate share of contributions                    179,712  
  
   Total deferred outflows of resources  $                193,787  

  
  
Deferred inflows of resources:  
   Net difference between projected and  
    actual investment earnings on pension  
    plan investments  $                  24,830  
  
   Changes in assumptions                      15,377  
  
   Changes in proportion and differences  
    between employer contributions and  
    proportionate share of contributions                    183,624  
  
   Total deferred inflows of resources  $                223,831  
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Note 8 – Conveyance of Land and Property to the Authority from the US Navy  
 
May 15, 2003 Conveyance 

  
 On May 15, 2003, the United States of America, acting through the Secretary of the Navy (Navy) conveyed a 

total of 549 acres of the former South Weymouth Naval Air Station to the Authority. Approximately 324 
acres were transferred under an Economic Development Conveyance (EDC) specifically for the purpose of 
commercial development by the Developer. The remaining 225 acres were transferred under a Public Benefit 
Conveyance (PBC) through the National Park Service under the authority of the Secretary of the Interior, to 
be used exclusively for a public park or public recreation under the direction of the Authority.  In June 2006, 
the 324 acres of land were transferred to the Developer for the initial phase of development. 
 
December 15, 2011 Purchase and Assignment to Developer and Amendments 

  
 On December 15, 2011 the Navy sold 558 acres of land to SRA. The purchase price of the land consisted of 

a.) an initial payment of $2 million at the closing, b.) a promissory note from SRA to the Navy in the amount 
of $10 million to be paid in ten annual equal principal installments plus interest based on the ten year 
Treasury Note rate as of the date of the sale, and c.) participation by the Navy in the Gross Real Estate 
Proceeds received by SRA or the Developer for land sales or ground leases to any vertical developer through 
December 31, 2031. The participation rate for the Navy is 5.04% of such Gross Real Estate Proceeds based 
on the fair market value of the sales or leases of certain land transferred. 

 
 On the same day of the purchase SRA conveyed the land purchased from the Navy to the Developer. SRA 

and the Developer executed an EDC Transfer, Assignment and Pass-Through Agreement regarding this 
transaction. This agreement conveys the land and SRA’s responsibilities to the Developer. The Developer 
paid the $2 million initial payment due at the closing and has assumed the $10 million promissory note due 
to the Navy as well as all of the other responsibilities of the purchase price. To secure the Developer’s 
payments, the Developer agreed to a decreasing $5 million letter of credit to the Navy, plus has consented to 
a mortgage on a 24-acre parcel of prime commercial land to the Authority. Pursuant to the most recent DDA 
(June 2017) (Section 3.2.1), the DDA security agreement and mortgage were terminated and discharged. 

 
 Subsequent amendments to this purchase and sale agreement, Amendment 1 (dated September 29, 2015) and 

Amendment 2 (dated February 13, 2018) provided additional provisions. Among these provisions, the 
Developer conveyed certain portions of its property at Union Point to two wholly-owned subsidiaries known 
as Union Point Residential LLC and Union Point Commercial LLC.  Additionally, the Developer, the 
Authority, and the Navy agreed the Developer would undertake certain remedial activities on the EDC land 
on behalf of, and in coordination and approval by the Navy. 

 
 Pursuant to Letter Agreement dated May 17, 2017 between the Navy, the Authority and the Developer, the 

Navy released the Developer from the $5 million letter of credit. Additionally, the Navy agreed annual 
payments due under the EDC agreement (promissory note) were deferred through, and including, December 
14, 2018.  Certain credits for environmental remediation costs are provided to the Developer by the Navy.  
The Navy reports deferred balance of $2.4 million as of September 20, 2018.  As of September 20, 2018, the 
Navy reports an outstanding balance due on the promissory note of approximately $7.1 million. 

 
 Summary of land transfers 
 

A total of approximately 924 acres of the land has been transferred from the Navy (Economic Development 
Conveyance-EDC) and approximately 232 acres of land has been transferred from the National Park Service 
(Public Benefit Conveyance -PBC) to the Authority as of June 30, 2018. Approximately 81 acres of EDC 
property and 148 acres of PBC property remain to be transferred to the Authority. 
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Note 9 – Due to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts – East West Parkway Financing Agreement 
 
On June 30, 2010, $30 million of Special Obligation Bonds (Commonwealth Contract Assistance) were 
issued by the Massachusetts Development Finance Agency, toward financing construction of the East West 
Parkway. The Authority executed an agreement (MOA) with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, acting by 
and through its Executive Office for Administration and Finance, related thereto. The proceeds of the bonds 
were disbursed by the Trustee to the Authority to reimburse the Authority for a portion of the costs incurred 
in connection with financing a portion of the Parkway Project (East West Parkway). The Authority is not 
liable for repayment of the Bonds; however, pursuant to the agreement, the Authority is obligated to make 
certain payments to the Commonwealth in the event that new state tax revenues generated by the 
redevelopment of the former naval air station does not meet certain projected amounts. These obligations 
may be negated if certain milestones are met. 
 
In December 2014, the Secretary of Administration and Finance for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
(Secretary) agreed to amend the MOA to allow for Deficiency Payments attributable to fiscal years 2013 to 
2018 to be deferred until June 30, 2020. The Secretary is authorized to extend this deferral to additional 
fiscal years if the Secretary determines that this deferral is fiscally responsible and serves the public interest. 
The Commonwealth last certified a deficiency in the amount of $1,375,000 for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 2013 which has been recorded as a liability in these financial statements.  
 
In February 2018, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts issued Special Obligation Refunding Bonds 
(Commonwealth Contract Assistance) Series 2017 in the amount of $24.8 million to outstanding bonds.  The 
expected future debt service associated with this refunding issue is as follows. 
 
 

Year  Principal   Interest   Total  
2019  $      650,000   $   1,042,350   $   1,692,350  
2020          680,000        1,009,850        1,689,850  
2021          715,000           975,850        1,690,850  
2022          755,000           940,100        1,695,100  
2023          785,000           902,350        1,687,350  

2024-2028       4,570,000        3,880,750        8,450,750  
2029-2033       5,720,000        2,732,800        8,452,800  
2034-2038       6,955,000        1,494,200        8,449,200  

2039-2040       3,190,000           192,600        3,382,600  

Total  $ 24,020,000   $ 13,170,850   $ 37,190,850  

    
 
As of the date of these financial statements no additional deficiency has been calculated by the Authority on 
an annual basis, and no additional deficiency has been certified by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  
 
 
Note 10 – Noncurrent Liabilities  
 
The following table illustrates the Authority’s noncurrent (long-term) liabilities and net changes for fiscal 
year 2018 of its governmental activities. The portion due in the next year has been reported as current within 
the financial statements. Certain beginning balances have been restated to correspond with the current year 
presentation. Additional disclosures related to each liability have been detailed in the following Notes. 
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 (restated)     
 Balance   Balance  

Description July 1, 2017 Additions Reductions June 30, 2018 Current 

2010A Infrastructure Development Bonds, 
  5.5%-7.75%, due 8/1/2040  $       12,400,000   $                    -   $     (500,000)  $      11,900,000   $        200,000  

Compensated absences                  13,661                  1,739                   15,400   
Net other postemployment liability                552,241                40,925                 593,166   
Net pension liability             1,028,249                         -          (381,723)               646,526                         -  
     Total long-term liabilities -  
         Governmental activities  $       13,994,151   $           42,664   $     (881,723)  $      13,155,092   $        200,000  

      
 
Note 11 – 2010A Infrastructure Development Bonds  
 
The 2010A Infrastructure Development Revenue Bonds (Bonds) were issued on August 9, 2010 in the 
amount of $12,550,000, pursuant to Chapter 301 of the Massachusetts Acts and Resolves of 1998, as 
amended by Chapter 303 of the Massachusetts Acts and Resolves of 2008, and a Trust Indenture, dated as of 
August 1, 2010 between the SSTTDC (Issuer) and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Trustee). The bonds are secured 
by pledged revenues and special assessments (assessments) levied on each parcel of real property within the 
boundaries of of the redevelopment area and are limited to those properties transferred known as FOST 1 and 
FOST 2 (approximately 324 acres). Per the infrastructure assessment plan, 35% of property tax revenue on 
developed properties and 25% of property tax revenue on undeveloped properties is to be pledged by the host 
communities (Weymouth, Rockland, Abington) toward the annual bond payment. The special assessment by 
parcel is based upon equivalent units assigned to undeveloped parcels within the designated area. For fiscal 
year 2018 the amount of pledged revenues was $716,535 and special assessments were $436,905, totaling 
$1,153,440 toward this debt service. 
 
During fiscal year 2018, there was a mandatory bond redemption of $350,000 associated with these bonds. 
Total additional principal payments of $150,000 and interest of $964,548 was paid during the year.  Future 
debt service associated with these bonds is as follows: 
 

Year Principal Interest Total 
2019  $      200,000   $      918,375   $   1,118,375  

2020          250,000           901,906        1,151,906  
2021          250,000           882,532        1,132,532  

2022          250,000           863,156        1,113,156  
2023          300,000           842,813        1,142,813  

2024-2028       1,825,000        3,832,378        5,657,378  
2029-2033       2,675,000        2,987,625        5,662,625  
2034-2038       3,675,000        1,782,501        5,457,501  

2039-2041       2,475,000           295,470        2,770,470  

Total  $ 11,900,000   $ 13,306,756   $ 25,206,756  
 
Authorized and Unissued Debt 
 
Pursuant to the Act, the Authority may issue up to $175,000,000 of bonds. The Authority may issue bonds 
secured in whole or in part by betterments, assessments, special assessments, fees and other charges, notes, 
debentures, long term capital leases, grants and governmental assistance and long- term contracts, under 
restrictions of the Act.  Bonds shall not have maturity dates exceeding 35 years from date of initial issuance. 
As of June 30, 2018, no additional bonds have been issued. 
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Note 12 – Temporary Borrowings 
 
Under the provisions of the Act and by authorization of the Board of Directors, the Authority is authorized to 
borrow on a temporary (short-term) basis in anticipation of federal, state or local grants for the cost of the 
project and acquiring, constructing or improving the infrastructure improvements. Such notes shall mature at 
such times as provided by the issuing resolution of the Authority and may be renewed from time to time; 
however, all notes and renewals thereof shall mature on or before 20 years from their date of issuance. Notes 
may be issued subject to those proceedings, conditions or things that are specifically required by the Act. 

 
Temporary loans are general obligations of the Authority. Interest expenditures for temporary borrowings are 
accounted for in the General Fund. Temporary borrowings are recorded as liabilities in the appropriate fund. 
 
The Authority did not have any temporary debt obligations outstanding at the beginning of the year, and 
incurred no such debt during the year.  
 
Note 13 – Employee Benefits 
 
A. Plymouth County Retirement Association 
 
Pension Benefits 
 
Plan Description 
 
The Plymouth County Retirement Association (the Plan) is a multiple-employer, cost sharing, contributory 
defined benefit pension plan covering all employees of the governmental member units deemed eligible by 
the Plymouth County Retirement Board (the Board), with the exception of school department employees who 
serve in a teaching capacity. As of December 31, 2017, the Association had 55 participating employers. 
 
The Association is a member of the Massachusetts Contributory Retirement System and is governed by 
Chapter 32 of the Massachusetts General Laws (MGL). The Public Employee Retirement Administration 
Commission (PERAC) is the state agency responsible for oversight of the Commonwealth's public retirement 
systems. The Association is governed by a five-member Board who establish the policies under which the 
Association operates. The Association issued an audited financial statement for the year ended December 31, 
2017, which may be obtained by contacting the Association directly at: Plymouth County Retirement 
Association, 10 Cordage Park Circle, Suite 234, Plymouth, MA 02360.   
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The Association provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to members and their 
beneficiaries. Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) establishes uniform benefit and contribution requirements 
for all contributory public employee retirement systems (PERS). Those requirements provide for 
superannuation retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 80% of a member’s highest three-year 
average annual rate of regular compensation. For employees hired after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances 
are calculated on the basis of the last five years or any five consecutive years, whichever is greater in terms 
of compensation. Benefit payments are based upon a member’s age, length of credible service, and group 
creditable service, and group classification. The authority for amending these provisions rests with the 
Legislature. 
 
Contributions 

 
There are three classes of membership in the retirement system: Group 1, Group 2 and Group 4. Group 1 
consists of general employees which includes clerical and administrative positions. Group 2 consists of 
positions that have specified as hazardous. Lastly, Group 4 consists of police officers, firefighters and other 
hazardous positions. 
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Any individual in Group 1 or Group 2 whose membership began before January 1, 1978 and who maintains 
an annuity savings fund account, is eligible to receive a superannuation retirement allowance at age 55 or 
later, regardless of how many years or creditable service. There are no minimum vesting requirements for 
individuals in Group 4. 

 
Members in Group 1 and 2, hired after January 1, 1978 and prior to April 2, 2012, are eligible to receive a 
superannuation retirement allowance upon the completion of 20 years of service or upon completion of 10 
years of service and upon reaching age 55. 

 
Members in Group 1 and 2, hired on or after April 2, 2012, are eligible to receive a superannuation 
retirement allowance upon the completion of 10 years of service and upon reaching age 60 (Group 1) or age 
55 (Group 2). 
 
Governmental employers are required to pay an annual appropriation established by PERAC. The total 
appropriation includes the amount to pay the pension portion of each member's retirement allowance, an 
amount to amortize the actuarially determined unfunded liability to zero in accordance with the system's 
funding schedule, and an additional appropriation in accordance with adopted early retirement incentive 
programs. The total appropriations are payable July 1 and January 1. Employers may choose to pay the entire 
appropriation in July at a discount rate of approximately 2%. The pension fund appropriations are allocated 
among employers based on covered payroll. The Authority's statutorily required contribution for the year 
was $83,720. 
 
Pension Liabilities, expenses, and deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
 
The collective net pension liability of the Association was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 
1, 2017, applied to all periods in the measurement date of December 31, 2017.   
 
 Components of the net pension liability as of December 31, 2017 were as follows: 
  

        2017 
Total pension liability $  1,555,495,352 
Less:  plan fiduciary net position   (1,019,707,446) 
     Net pension liability $     535,787,906 
 
Plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage 

 

  of total pension liability          65.56% 
  
Total employer pension expense $      52,212,734 
The Authority’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liability $           646,526 
The Authority's percentage share of the collective net pension liability           .1202% 
Authority covered payroll $           268,731 
The Authority's proportionate share of pension expense recognized $             74,430 

 
The District's aggregate proportionate share of collective deferred outflows of resources was $193,787. The 
District’s aggregate proportionate share of deferred inflows of resources was $223,831. The net of $(30,044) 
is to be recognized in future pension expense for the fiscal years ending June 30, as follows: 
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  Net  

 Year Ending   Amount  
 June 30, 2019   $    29,685  
 June 30, 2020         21,598  
 June 30, 2021        (40,801) 

 June 30, 2022        (40,526) 

    Net total   $   (30,044) 
 
The following are certain key actuarial assumptions utilized in the valuation: 
 
Valuation date: January 1, 2017 
Actuarial cost method:  Individual Entry Age Normal Cost Method. 
Investment rate of return: 8% nominal rate, net of investment expense. 
Amortization method:  Payments increase at 3.5% for the unfunded actuarial accrued liability, and 

level amortization of the 2002, 2003, and 2013 Early Retirement Incentives. 
Remaining amortization period: Amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over 12 years, the 

2002 ERI over two years, 2003 ERI over three years, and the 2013 ERI over 
11 years; all as of July 1, 2017. 

Asset valuation method:  Market value with a five-year smoothing of asset returns greater than or less 
than the assumed rate of return, with a 20% corridor. 

Projected salary increases: 3.75% per year. 
Cost-of-living adjustments: 3.00% of the less of the pension amount and $14,000 per year. 
Rates of retirement:  Varies based upon age for general employees, police, and fire employees. 
Rates of disability:  General employees – 45% ordinary (55% service connected).  

    Police & Fire – 10% ordinary (90% service connected). 
Mortality rates:   It is assumed that both pre-retirement mortality and beneficiary mortality is 

represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality with Scale MP-2016, 
fully generational. Mortality for retired members for Group 1 and 2 is 
represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table set forward five 
years for males and 3 years for females, fully generational. Mortality for 
retired members for Group 4 is represented by the RP-2014 Blue Collar 
Mortality Table set forward three years for males and six years for females, 
fully generational. Mortality for disabled members for Group 1 and 2 is 
represented by the RP-2000 Mortality Table set forward six years. Mortality 
for disabled members for Group 4 is represented by the RP-2000 Mortality 
Table set forward two years. Generational adjusting is based on Scale MP-
2016. 

 
The Plan’s investment policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established by the Board and 
pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws and Public Employee Retirement Administration guidelines. Plan 
assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of achieving a fully funded status for 
the benefits provided through the pension plan. 
 
The investment objective is to fully fund the Plan by generating sufficient long-term inflation adjusted 
capital appreciation while providing sufficient liquidity to meet short-term withdrawal requirements. The 
Board desires to balance the goal of higher long-term returns with the goal of minimizing contribution 
volatility, recognizing these are often competing goals. This requires taking both assets and liabilities 
into account when setting investment strategy. The pension’s plan target asset allocation is summarized in 
the following table: 
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 Long Term  

 Expected Nominal Target 
Asset Class Rate of Return Allocation 

US equity     7.50%   26.50% 
Developed markets equity     7.30%   16.00% 
Emerging markets equity      9.80%     4.00% 
Core bonds     4.20%   11.50% 
Foreign bonds     2.40%     3.00% 
Emerging markets bonds     5.50%     4.00% 
High yield bonds     6.00%     4.00% 
Bank loans     5.50%     3.00% 
Private equity     9.60%   10.60% 
Real estate     6.90%   10.00% 
Natural resources     7.00%    1.00% 
Infrastructure     7.80%    2.00% 
Hedge funds     5.30%    4.00% 
Cash     2.80%     1.00% 
      Total  100.00% 

 
Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00%. The discount rate was selected 
based on a projection of employer and employee contributions benefit payments, expenses, and the 
long term expected rate of return on trust assets. 

 
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate 
 
The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8.00%, as well as 
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point 
lower (7.00%) or 1-percentage point higher (9.00%) 

 
  1% Decrease   Current   1% Increase  

 7.0% 8.0% 9.0% 
 PCRA Total net pension liability      
     December 31, 2017   $     695,089,721   $ 535,787,906   $  397,853,354  
 Authority's proportionate share   $            838,762   $        646,526   $         480,088  

 
B.  Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) 

 
The Authority implemented a new accounting standard required for fiscal year 2018, GASB Statement #75 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The related effects 
have been described herein and in Note 14. 
 
Plan Description  
 
The Authority administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare (medical and dental) plan (Plan). The 
plan provides lifetime healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the Authority’s 
group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The Authority currently pays 
postemployment health care benefits on a pay-as-you go basis. The Authority has assigned general fund 
balance for future benefits, the Authority has not established a trust or equivalent arrangement in accordance 
with Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) or government accounting standards. Accordingly, there are no 
financial statements associated with the Plan.  
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Covered Members, Benefits Provided and Eligibility 
 
At June 30, 2018, the Plan’s membership consisted of 2 current active members and 3 separated members 
entitled to receive future benefits. Eligibility is based upon the Authority’s personnel policies. The Plan 
provides benefits through the Mayflower Municipal Health Group (Group), a joint purchasing group 
established pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) The Group administers, assumes and pays all 
claims of the Plan. Contribution rates are established by MGL and personnel policies and practices 
 
Contributions – Contributions are based on a pay-as-you-go financing requirement. The Authority 
contributes 75 percent of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members and their 
spouses. Plan members receiving benefits contribute the remaining 25 percent of their premium costs. 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
Pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement #75, the Authority utilized an alternative method for 
determining of the estimated OPEB liability, utilizing a valuation/measurement date of July 1, 2017. 
Accordingly, the estimated liability has been reported in the Authority’s government-wide financial 
statements as follows. 
 

Net OPEB liability (GASB 45)   $           374,854  

  Changes due to implementation (GASB 75)                177,387  
 Net OPEB liability, restated 7/1/2016                552,241  
   Service cost                 37,592  
   Interest                 24,801  

   Benefits                (21,468) 

 Net OPEB liability    $           593,166  
 
Methods and Assumptions – Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the 
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques 
that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
The following are certain key actuarial assumptions and specifications utilized in the valuation estimate. 
 

 Valuation date:     July 1, 2017 
 Discount Rate:     4.0% 
 Assumed Medical care inflator (trend):  5.0% 
 Assumed Retirement Age:   61 years old. 
 Assumed participation:    80% (active and spouse) 
 Retiree share of premiums:   25% 
 
Sensitivity of the Estimated Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and Health Care Trend 

   The following presents the impact on the estimated net OPEB liability and corresponding service 
cost of the Authority, as well as what the Authority’s estimated net OPEB liability and corresponding 
service cost would be if they were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate and health care trend: 
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  1% Decrease   Current   1% Increase  
 Health care trend  4.0% 5.0% 6.0% 

Discount Rate 3.0% 4.0% 5.0% 
    

 Estimated Net OPEB Liability   $                593,938   $               593,166   $            592,407  
 
C.  Compensated Absences 
 
The Authority’s personnel policy permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave. 
The liability for the estimated vacation time carryover has been recorded as a long-term obligation in the 
government-wide statements.  
 
Note 14 – Risk Management 
 
Insurance 
 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The Authority carries various types of commercial 
insurance to address these exposures.  
 
Additionally, the Authority belongs to the Mayflower Municipal Health Group, a joint purchasing group, 
established by Massachusetts General Law to provide health care benefits for members. The Authority 
contributes 75% of premiums on behalf of active and retired employees. The employee and retiree portions 
are paid to the Authority or withheld through payroll deductions. During fiscal year 2018 the Authority paid 
approximately $80,000 for premiums. The Group reported net position of $10.8 million as of June 30, 2017. 
Additional information can be obtained by contacting the Group directly.  
 
Performance bonds and deposits 
 
The Authority requires certain performance bonds or performance deposits from the various developers to 
insure completion of certain infrastructure (public ways) associated with a project. As of June 30, 2018, the 
Authority maintains performance bonds and deposits of approximately, $8.0 million. Performance deposits 
of $31,000 are reflected as agency accounts in the fiduciary financial statements. In August 2018, the 
Authority received an additional $500,000 performance deposit for the latest development of 45 single 
family homes. 
 
Note 15 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Litigation 
 
There is no pending litigation against the Authority and management is unaware of any unasserted claims 
that would materially affect the financial position of the Authority.  
 
East West Parkway Financing Agreement with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 
As of the date of these financial statements the Authority has an ongoing commitment to the Commonwealth 
of Massachusetts for certain payments to the Commonwealth in the event that new state tax revenues 
generated by the redevelopment of the former naval air station does not meet certain projected amounts. 
Refer to Note 7 for additional information. 
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Promissory note 
 
As of the date of these financial statements, the Authority has a contingent liability to the Navy pursuant to a 
letter agreement dated May 17, 2017. No liability has been reported in the financial statement of the 
Authority.  Refer to Note 6 for additional information. 
 
Other Agreements 
 
The Authority has entered a contractual agreement with the Southfield Landowners Association, LLC 
(Association) for the operation and maintenance of the portion of the East West Parkway owned by the 
Authority pursuant the the Enabling Act. The Southfield Landowners Association undertakes all financial 
responsibility associated with the operation and maintenance of the Parkway. Pursuant t0 the agreement, the 
Authority contracts with the appropriate vendors and invoices the Association. Given the nature of the 
activity for the current year, these amounts have been included as a major fund of the Authority for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
The Authority has entered into a contractual agreement with the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
(Department of Transportation) in relation to the reconstruction and widening of Route 18, a state owned and 
operated highway which borders the redevelopment area. The Authority essentially serves as a pass-through 
entity for the costs and reimbursements from the Commonwealth. Given the nature of the activity for the 
current year, these amounts have been included in the Authority’s other governmental funds for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
The Authority entered a contractual agreement with the Metropolitan Area Planning Council, on behalf of 
the Central Transportation Planning Staff (CTPS) to undertake and perform work associated with a traffic 
study surrounding the Union Point Redevelopment. The Authority has entered a contract and agreement with 
the Developer to act as the contracting party with CTPS and the Developer agreeing to be financially 
responsible for all costs associated with the contract. The Authority essentially serves as a pass-through 
entity for the costs and reimbursements from the Developer. Given the nature of the activity for the current 
year, these amounts have been included in the Authority’s other governmental funds for financial reporting 
purposes. 

 
Note 16 – Restatement of certain beginning Net Position and Fund Balance 
 
The following table illustrates restatement of beginning net position for the government-wide financial 
statements and fund balance for the governmental funds. 
 

Government-wide financial statements:    
  Governmental   Business-type  

  Activities   Activities  
 Net position balance June 30, 2017   $          37,289,888   $               852,716  
    Net effect of GASB # 75 implementation                   (177,387)  
    Reclassification of infrastructure not owned                (7,743,089)  
    Reclassification of allocation of water/sewer OPEB                     (26,841)                      26,841  
    Reclassification of allocation of water/sewer net pension liability                     (29,988)                      29,988  

    Reclassification of funds as agency (custodial)                     (75,885)                               -  

 Net position balance, restated, July 1, 2017   $          29,236,698   $                909,545  
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Fund basis financial statements:      
   Parkway   Parkway   Other  

  General   Maintenance   Extension Project   Governmental  

  Fund   Fund   Fund   Funds  
 Fund balance, June 30, 2017   $            1,066,355   $                         -   $              54,163   $            124,162  
    Reclassification of funds as general for GAAP                      52,906                  (52,906) 
    Reclassification of funds as agency (custodial)                     (75,885) 

    Reporting under current year presentation                                -                        14,771                 (54,163)                  39,392  

 Fund balance, July 1, 2017, restated   $            1,119,261   $                   14,771   $                        -   $              34,763  
 
Note 17 – Subsequent Events 
 
On December 5, 2018, the Board of Directors of the Southfield Redevelopment Authority voted to provide 
the master developer a default notice, deeming the master developer to be in default of the terms of the 
disposition and development agreement.  The Board’s decision is a result of a combination of legal, financial 
and lack of development issues of the master developer.  The default notice provides the master developer 30 
days to address the deficiencies.  The Board of Directors will determine future action as deemed appropriate, 
including potentially terminating the master developer agreement. 
 
Management of the Southfield Redevelopment Authority has evaluated subsequent events through December 
14, 2018, the date of which the financial statements were issued.  No additional significant or material events 
have been identified. 
 
Note 18 – Implementation of GASB pronouncements 

 
The following are pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which 
are applicable to the Authority’s financial statements.   

 
Current pronouncements 

 
The GASB issued Statement #75, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than 
Pensions, which was required to be implemented in fiscal year 2018. The pronouncement replaces previously 
issued guidance and establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments whose 
employees are provided other post-employment benefits. The Authority implemented the pronouncement as 
applicable. 

  
The GASB issued Statement #82, Pension Issues - An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 67, No. 68 and 
No. 73, which was required to be implemented in fiscal year 2018. The pronouncement addresses certain 
classification, presentation and other issues raised with previous Statements addressing pension obligations. 
The Authority implemented the pronouncement as applicable. 

 
The GASB issued Statement #85, Omnibus 2017, which was required to be implemented in fiscal year 2018. 
This pronouncement addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB Statements. The pronouncement had no significant effect on the Authority’s 
financial statements in the current year.  

 
The GASB issued Statement #86, Certain Debt Extinguishing Issues, which was required to be implemented 
in fiscal year 2018. This pronouncement improves the consistency in accounting and financial reporting for 
in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transaction in which cash and other monetary 
assets acquired with only existing resources – resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt – are 
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. The pronouncement had no effect on 
the Authority’s financial statements in the current year.  
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Future pronouncements 
 

The GASB issued Statement #83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, which is required to be 
implemented in fiscal year 2019. The pronouncement establishes criteria for determining the timing and 
pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset retirement 
obligations. The Authority doesn’t expect the pronouncement not have an effect on the financial statements. 
 
The GASB issued Statement #84, Fiduciary Activities, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 
2020. The pronouncement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities and its objective is to 
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting 
purposes and how those activities should be reported. The Authority expects to implement the 
pronouncement as applicable. 
 
The GASB issued Statement #87, Leases, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2021. This 
pronouncement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of 
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized 
as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. The 
Authority expects to implement the pronouncement as applicable. 

 
The GASB issued Statement #88, Certain Disclosures related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and 
Direct Placements, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2021. This pronouncement is to 
improve consistency in the information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related 
to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements, and to provide additional essential information 
about debt. The Authority expects to implement the pronouncement as applicable. 

 
The GASB issued Statement #89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 
Period, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2019. This pronouncement’s objectives are to 
enhance the relevance and comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a 
reporting period and to simplify the accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction 
period. The Authority doesn’t expect the pronouncement to have an effect on the financial statements. 

 
The GASB issued Statement #90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statements No.14 and 
No. 61, which is required to be implemented in fiscal year 2020. This pronouncement improves the 
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority interest in a legally separate 
organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. 
The Authority doesn’t expect this pronouncement to be applicable. 

 
********* 
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Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Changes in the Authority’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios and Notes 
Last Ten Years 

 
 

This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a 
full 10-year trend is compiled, the Authority will present information for those years which information is 
available.  
 
The Authority calculates the estimated Net OPEB Liability under an alternative method. The Authority has 
not established an irrevocable trust or equivalent arrangement in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Accordingly, the Plan reports no net position, and the total OPEB liability and net 
liability are the same amount. The following illustrates the Authority’s change in Net OPEB liability for 
the the measurement date of July 1, 2017, which corresponds with the Authority’s (employer) reporting 
date of June 30, 2018. 
 

Net OPEB liability (GASB 45)   $           374,854  

  Changes due to implementation (GASB 75)                177,387  
 Net OPEB liability, restated 7/1/2016                552,241  
   Service cost                 37,592  
   Interest                 24,801  

   Benefits                (21,468) 

 Net OPEB liability, June 30,2017 (reporting date June 30, 2018)   $           593,166  

 Covered employee payroll   $           280,000  
 Net OPEB liability as percentage of   
     covered employee payroll  211.85% 

 
 
 
The following are certain key actuarial assumptions and specifications utilized in the valuation estimate. 

 Valuation date:     July 1, 2017 
 Discount Rate:     4.0% 
 Assumed Medical care inflator (trend):  5.0% 
 Assumed Retirement Age:   61 years old. 
 Assumed participation:    80% (active and spouse) 
 Retiree share of premiums:   25% 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 



*These schedules are intended to present information for (10) years. Until a (10) year trend is complied, information is presented for those
years which information is available.

The Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information on the Authority's
 net pension liability and related ratios.

System Year End December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014

Authority's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.120% 0.164% 0.105% 0.105%

Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) 646,526$           1,042,010$        663,053$           609,402$           

Authority's covered employee payroll 268,731$           258,395$           377,512$           363,867$           

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 240.58% 403.26% 175.64% 167.48%

The Schedule of the Authority's Contributions presents multi-year trend information on the Authority's required and actual contributions 

Authority (Employer) Year End
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Actuarially determined contribution 83,720$             79,442$             106,615$           98,935$             

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (83,720)             (79,442)             (106,615)           (98,935)             

Contribution deficiency (excess) $                    $                    $                    $                    

Covered-employee payroll 268,731$           258,395$           377,512$           363,867$           

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll -31.15% -30.74% -28.24% -27.19%

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

Plymouth County Contributory Retirement System

Plymouth County Contributory Retirement System

Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions
Last Ten Years

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and
Required Supplementary Information

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Original

Budget

Final

Budget  Actual 

Variance with Final 

Budget 

Revenues
Pledged revenue and assessments 1,133,084$             1,133,084$             1,153,441$             20,357$                  
Real estate and personal property taxes 131,269                  131,269                  101,922                  (29,347)                   
Developer fees 444,290                  444,290                  237,779 (206,511)                 
Other revenue 15,000                    15,000                    25,506                    10,506                    

    Total revenues 1,723,643               1,723,643               1,518,648               (204,995)                 

Expenditures
Board of Directors:

Salaries 42,188                    42,588                    41,993 595                         
Expenses 33,000                    33,000                    26,469 6,531                      

Chief Executive Officer:
Salaries 68,000                    111,000                  107,423 3,577                      
Expenses 60,200                    82,700                    40,956 41,744                    

Finance:
Salaries 120,000                  120,000                  67,228 52,772                    
Expenses 32,863                    32,863                    24,293 8,570                      

Solicitor 208,765                  102,865                  62,605 40,260                    
Information systems expenses 50,000                    60,000                    49,521 10,479                    
Planning Board:

Salaries 122,000                  147,000                  124,132 22,868                    
Expenses 94,100                    94,100                    62,831 31,269                    

Pension, benefits, and insurance 179,000                  179,000                  168,133 10,867                    
Maintenance on buildings 16,500                    21,500                    7,483 14,017                    
Public works expense 8,641                      8,641                      5,202                      3,439                      
Debt service 1,133,084               1,133,084               1,093,134               39,950                    

    Total expenditures 2,168,341               2,168,341               1,881,403               286,938                  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (444,698)                 (444,698)                 (362,755)                 81,943                    

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers (out)                               (400,000)                 (400,000)                                               

    Total other financing sources (uses)                               (400,000)                 (400,000)                                               

Net change (444,698)                 (844,698)                 (762,755)$               (123,052)$               

Other budgetary items
Carryover encumbrances 23,519                    23,519                    

Use of available fund balance 421,179                  821,179                  

    Total other budget items 444,698                  844,698                  

Net Budget -$                           -$                           

See Independent Auditor's Report.
See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule.

36



SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
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June 30, 2018 
 

See Independent Auditor’s Report. 
37 

 
A.  Budgetary basis of accounting 
 
The Southfield Redevelopment Authority establishes its annual budget under the directions of the Board of 
Directors, in accordance with its enabling legislation, and the approved Disposition and Development 
Agreements (DDA) between the Southfield Redevelopment Authority and the Developer.  

 
Budgets are prepared on a basis other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP).  In accordance with GAAP, enterprise fund budgets are not presented.  The Authority is 
required to present budgetary information for the General fund.  The “actual” results column of the 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented on a “budget basis” to provide a meaningful comparison with 
the budget. The major differences between the Authority’s budgetary basis and GAAP are related to 
activities of the Authority that are considered to be General fund activities for financial reporting purposes. A 
reconciliation of the budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the General Fund for the year ended June 30, 
2018, is presented below: 

 
 

    Other  

    Financing  

  Revenues   Expenditures   Sources (Uses)  

 As reported on a budgetary basis   $ 1,518,648   $1,881,403   $    (400,000) 

    Stabilization fund activity                  12           400,000  

    OPEB stabilization fund activity             2,171    
    Other                  68                    -                      -  

 As reported on a GAAP basis   $ 1,520,899   $1,881,403   $                 -  
 
Stabilization Funds 

 
The Authority maintains a general stabilization fund in accordance with Massachusetts General Laws. Since 
this fund does not have a specific ongoing revenue source, under generally accepted accounting principles, 
this fund is included with the General fund for financial reporting purposes. At June 30, 2018, the general 
stabilization fund maintained a balance of $401,703. 
 
In addition, the Authority maintains a stabilization fund for accumulating resources for future other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB). Amounts accumulated are not irrevocable and are subject to creditors of 
the Authority. Furthermore, the use of accumulated funds can be reassigned upon approval of the Board of 
Directors. Accordingly, these amounts are reported in the General fund as assigned fund balance in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. At June 30, 2018, the OPEB stabilization fund 
maintained a balance of $298,900.  
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REPORT IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 







 

 

 
SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

 
2018-001 Maintenance and monitoring of certain financial activities 
 
The following findings highlight deficiencies noted with financial activities of the Authority, the combination of 
which are considered to be material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting and compliance for the 
year ended June 30, 2018.  
 
 Business-type activities – water/sewer fund 
 

The Southfield Redevelopment Authority is legally responsible for providing and maintaining water and 
sewer utilities to the redevelopment area. The Authority adopted an enterprise fund to account for the 
resources and costs associated with these activities. Actual water and sewer services are provided pursuant 
to an agreement between the Southfield Redevelopment Authority and the Town of Weymouth, 
Massachusetts. During fiscal year 2018, the administration of the billings and collections associated with the 
water and sewer activities were verbally transferred from the Authority to the Town of Weymouth. 
Accordingly, over one half of the fiscal year’s activity was directly billed and collected by the Town of 
Weymouth. The Authority maintained invoices and verified amounts being billed by the Town of Weymouth 
for water usage through the master meters of the Authority for usage period of July 2017 through October 
2017. However, the Authority did not maintain formally approved commitments for amounts billed by the 
Authority to individual customer accounts (end users) during the period. Additionally, there was no overall 
accounting and/or reconciliation for water usage amounts billed and associated collections and revenues for 
fiscal year 2018 overall. The Authority estimates, based upon total water usage for the year, providing for 
unbilled water due to massive fire during the year in a development complex, approximately $440,000 to 
$650,000 of utility revenue and related expenses billed at the Town of Weymouth rate, may relate to the 
remainder of the fiscal year. The Town of Weymouth confirmed the Town agreed to assume the utility billing 
functions (meter readings, billings and collections) of the Southfield Redevelopment Authority. Additionally, 
the Town of Weymouth indicated the Southfield Redevelopment Authority owes the Town approximately 
$317,000 of sewer connection fees. The Southfield Redevelopment Authority and the Town of Weymouth 
have not yet formalized any amendments to original agreements addressing issues surrounding the 
responsibilities associated with water and sewer activities. Both parties indicate the agreement is to be 
reviewed. Accordingly, the ultimate effect on the revenues and related expenses of the water/sewer fund and 
net position are indeterminable.  Our report on the financial statements of the business-type activities of the 
Southfield Redevelopment Authority disclaims an opinion. 

 
Auditor’s Recommendation: Given the nature of the development project, responsibilities (current and future) 
of the Authority, Developer and member communities, it is important that all aspects and ramifications of 
changes (practical or otherwise) be contemplated and ratified into formal agreements to ensure all the 
financial, reporting and other responsibilities of all parties are clearly documented and achieved. As with all 
agreements, these should be reviewed for efficiency and effectiveness on a routine basis.  
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

 
 

 
 Due to the Commonwealth- East West Parkway Financing Agreement 
 

The Southfield Redevelopment Authority reports a contingent liability on its financial statements at June 30, 
2018 of $1,375,000 for an amount due to the Commonwealth of Massachusetts for certain deficiency 
payments certified owed for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 involving a financing arrangement for 
construction of the East West Parkway. Additional information surrounding the agreement can be found in 
the notes to the basic financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2018. While the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts has deferred additional certification of any deficiencies for fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 
through June 30, 2018, the Authority has not performed the calculation for subsequent years and the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts has yet to certify any additional deficiencies owed, or formally waived any 
further obligations pursuant to the agreement. The Authority is in the process of working with the Developer 
and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in regard to providing the necessary data to perform the applicable 
calculation and address this potential obligation. Accordingly, any contingent liability due to the 
Commonwealth under this agreement (increase, decrease, or elimination) as of June 30, 2018 was 
indeterminable as of the date of these financial statements. Our opinion on the financial statements of the 
governmental activities and the General fund was qualified for this matter. 
 
Auditor’s Recommendation: While the enabling legislation deferred additional certification of any 
deficiencies for fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 through June 30, 2018, in our opinion, in accordance with 
the agreement, such calculations should have been calculated on an ongoing basis annually. While this 
requires communication with all parties (Authority, Developer, Commonwealth), it provides a more accurate 
and timely determination of the possible liability (and associated information) which is essential in the 
development of future finances (i.e. budgeting, cashflows, fees, taxes, assessments, reserves) and possible 
ramifications to established agreements and legislation. The Authority should address this requirement 
formally on an annual basis with the Commonwealth. Any anticipated liability should be maintained in the 
financial management system (general ledger).  
 
Lack of segregation of duties 
 
Currently, the Authority employs a part-time treasurer who maintains custody of both the Authority’s cash 
and the Authority’s financial management system (general ledger). Under generally accepted auditing 
standards treasury and accounting duties are generally considered incompatible duties. The Authority 
currently has (2) full-time employees (executive director (hired February 2018) and land use administrator) 
in addition to the part-time treasurer. Given minimal staff, it is of greater importance that both management 
and those charged with governance continually evaluate operations and responsibilities and address any 
internal control limitations and/or deficiencies as deemed appropriate. See our findings above and our 
additional comments in the other matters section below.   
 
Maintenance of the financial management system (accounting ledger) 
 
It is important for a financial management system (general ledger) to be established and maintained in a 
manner which provides for timely, accurate and comprehensive financial information related to the entity. 
During our audit of the current year ending June 30, 2018, we noted the following deficiencies associated 
with the Authority’s computerized financial management system (accounting ledger). Our recommendations 
associated with each have been included. 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 
 During the current year, we noted the cash account associated with the redemption fund 

(approximately $21,000), was not reported in the the general ledger. Based upon our understanding 
of the Trust Indenture associated with the 2010 Infrastructure bonds, certain funds appear required 
to be maintained. While cash accounts are maintained for each, pledged revenues and assessments 
and associated debt service is maintained in the general fund. The reserve fund (renamed in the 
current year) is the only other fund specifically maintained in the general ledger. We proposed an 
adjustment to report the redemption fund in the financial statements. Management should consider 
the establishment of separate funds to correspond with the cash accounts identified within the trust 
indenture to ensure amounts have been properly accounted for and reserved as appropriate. We also 
noted bank account reconciliations and associated bank statements from the beginning of the fiscal 
year (July 2017, August 2017) were not on file. Established policies and procedures should ensure 
the maintenance of all records are safeguarded. 

 
 During the current year, we noted budgeted revenues were not reported in the financial management 

system. Additionally, account receivable balances are not being maintained within the general ledger. 
Pursuant to the enabling legislation, property taxes are to be assessed and collected by the member 
communities and remitted on a quarterly basis to the Authority. Pledged revenues and special 
assessments also are required to be submitted on a quarterly basis. We recommend all budgeted 
revenues be reported in the financial management system. We recommend all amounts assessed be 
reported as receivables when committed, allowing for overall monitoring of amounts due. 
Furthermore, we recommend the Authority consider reporting amounts billed to others (i.e. parkway 
maintenance, traffic study) in the general ledger as a receivable, offset by deferred revenue. This will 
assist in monitoring the balances owed centrally within the financial management system, but also 
allow for monitoring timeliness of payments in accordance with agreement provisions (i.e. interest 
charges).  

 
 During the current year, we noted the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reported in the 

asset account group in the general ledger did not reconcile with prior year reported amounts. 
Additionally, detailed listings of the capital asset were not on file. Summary and detailed activity 
from prior periods were ultimately provided and utilized for the current year audit. Per review with 
personnel, restatement of beginning of the year amounts for infrastructure which was determined to 
have been transferred with the enabling legislation enacted in 2014. Personnel should ensure 
appropriate detail is maintained on an ongoing basis and within the general ledger. 

 
 During the year, we noted the long-term account group maintained in the general ledger did not 

reconcile to underlying activity.  We recommend personnel review the balances maintained in this 
account group for current applicable activity (outstanding bond balance, contingent note, etc.). We 
recommend memorandum entries be maintained for authorized debt issuances. Furthermore, we 
recommend consideration be given to also recording within these memorandum entries or account 
groups, appropriate detail of performance bonds and other deposits being held by the Authority. 
Based upon our inquiries for the current year, a centralized listing was developed which approximates 
$8.0 million. Future accounting standards will have an impact upon the reporting associated with 
certain fiduciary activities. 

 
 During the current year, we noted approximately $18,000 of state Chapter 70 aid, belonging to the 

Town of Weymouth was received and posted to a special revenue fund. This amount has been 
reflected within accounts payable at June 30, 2018.  

 
 During the current year, we noted the Authority’s general ledger maintained an old accounts payable 

balance of approximately $175,000 dating back several years which should have been relieved. This 
adjustment has been proposed to the Authority. 
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SOUTHFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 
 
2018-002 Other matters and associated recommendations 
 
The following are other matters noted during our audit, we recommend the Board of Directors evaluate. Our 
associated recommendations are contained herein. 
 
Evaluate establishment of Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund (OPEB) 
 
Like many Massachusetts municipal entities, the Authority pays retiree benefits on a “pay as you go” basis. While 
the Authority has established an Other Postemployment Benefits stabilization fund in accordance with Massachusetts 
General Laws, designed to begin accumulating funds for these future postemployment healthcare benefits, 
stabilization funds are not irrevocable under the law.  We recommend the Authority consider establishing a OPEB 
Trust as provided by statute. This allows for funds to be accumulated and disbursed according to a formalized trust 
arrangement. Funds maintained within the trust are irrevocable and are not subject to the creditors of the Authority. 
We recommend the Authority ensure the eligibility, and “plan” benefits are clearly defined within a plan document 
and/or the employee handbook. Due to the fact the Authority has minimal membership (less than 100 members) 
within the plan, an alternative methodology is allowed to estimate the net other postemployment benefit liability. As 
of June 30, 2018, this liability has been estimated at $593,000. We recommend the Authority have a formal actuarial 
valuation performed biannually and consider funding in accordance with any actuarial determined contribution. This 
is an important obligation and one which should be formally considered is essential in the development of future 
finances (i.e. budgeting, cashflows, fees, taxes, assessments, reserves) and possible ramifications to established 
agreements and legislation.  
 
 
Establish documented policies and procedures and formalized risk assessments 
 
An effective internal control environment requires formalized policies and procedures which are continually being 
evaluated for effectiveness of their design and operation and updated accordingly. Several of the key components of 
any internal control environment are the regular communication of established policies and procedures and the 
monitoring thereof. This assists in assuring that employees and management, while performing assigned 
duties/functions “prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis”. Established procedures should 
ensure that misstatements, errors and corrections are formally documented, communicated and or approved through 
appropriate supervisory personnel. Furthermore, clearly defined policies and procedures assist during periods of 
transition in personnel. Given the significance of the various agreements and contingent obligations to which the 
Authority is party to, it is important to ensure established procedures, and risk assessments are continually monitored 
to ensure compliance with agreements and financial reporting. See also our findings reported above.  
 
While no internal control system is absolute, smaller entities suffer from lack of personnel (segregation of duties), 
and turnover; formalized policies and procedures and risks assessments thereof, become more important to address 
those deficiencies. Formal policies and procedures should not only address the safeguarding of assets (i.e. 
misappropriation), but also the reliability and safeguarding of and access to financial information (general ledger 
information, bank statements and other documents) and other information necessary for decision making. Established 
internal control policies and procedures should address the understandability, reliability, relevance, timeliness, 
consistency, and comparability of all information affecting the financial reports of the Authority.  
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 Practical considerations and the advantages and disadvantages (cost/benefit) of the design of the internal control 
environment (and associated staffing levels) must be assessed and accepted by both management and those charged 
with governance. Accordingly, in our professional opinion, a formalized, routine “risk assessment” program is an 
essential component in the overall internal control environment and in addressing financial, operational and 
compliance issues in a proactive manner. All risk assessments and degrees of risks accepted should be formally 
documented.  
 
 
Develop Fraud Policy 

 
In conjunction with formalized risk assessments and established policies and procedures, we recommend the 
Authority develop a fraud policy. While fraud is often associated solely with theft, entities must be conscious of the 
fact that categorization of fraud is not absolute. Fraud generally involves intent by a perpetrator and reliance by the 
victim. Therefore, ultimately any final determination of a fraudulent act is for legal “tier of fact”. However, it is 
important that management of entities realize it instances of suspect actions, the lack of formalized policies and 
procedures which include but not limited to: defining acts considered fraudulent, communication of established 
policies/procedures (inclusive of fraud policies) to parties (personnel, officials, vendors, etc.), mechanisms for 
reporting (i.e. hotlines, etc.), can be detrimental in the resolution thereof (i.e. terminations, restitutions, etc.).  
 
 
AUDITEE’S RESPONSE TO AUDIT FINDINGS – 2018-001 
 
The following are the Southfield Redevelopment Authority’s responses to the independent auditor’s findings. 
 
Business-type activities – water/sewer fund 
 
The Fiscal 2018 Water and Sewer Commitments for July through September 2017 are available at the SRA.  All 
subsequent billing and revenue were turned over to the Town of Weymouth, under a verbal agreement, which is 
currently being developed into a formalized MOA. 

 
Due to the Commonwealth- East West Parkway Financing Agreement 
 
The Master Developer did not provide the SRA with records required to compute the Parkway Bond deficiency 
payments for Fiscal 2014 through Fiscal 2018.  The SRA retained a consulting firm, RKG, to work through the 
collection and summary of data from the Master Developer and the State.    

 
Lack of segregation of duties 
 
A staff of one part-time financial position does not allow for proper segregation of duties. 

 
Maintenance of the financial management system (accounting ledger) 
 
-The Wells Fargo Trust fund retains a balance from the original 2010A bond issuance of $21,000.  The $271,000 
balance could only be refunded in increments of $25,000.  Although the balance had not previously been carried in 
the General Ledger, the remaining $21,000 has now been recorded. 

-In Fiscal 2018 the Estimated Revenues were not recorded when the budget was approved.  The current Fiscal 2019 
Estimated Revenues are recorded. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS & RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 

 
Maintenance of the financial management system (accounting ledger) (continued) 
 
- The Long-Term Debt Account Group has not recorded performance bonds in prior years.  Recording of performance 
bonds will be implemented in Fiscal 2019 going forward. 

- The SRA was credited by the State for Weymouth’s Chapter 70 funding in September of 2017 and recorded as an 
SRA receipt.  The revenue was reclassified as a liability for the end of 2018 and forwarded to the Town of Weymouth.  

- A long standing $175,000 accounts payable, with a lack of associated detail, has been removed from the General 
Ledger. 

 
AUDITEE’S RESPONSE TO AUDIT FINDINGS – 2018-002 
 
following are other matters noted during our audit, we recommend the Board of Directors evaluate. Our associated 
recommendations are contained herein. 
 
Evaluate establishment of Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund (OPEB) 
 
The OPEB balance was estimated with the assistance of an Actuarial firm.  It is the intend to engage the firm for the 
Fiscal 2019 audit.  The Board has adopted the policy that was recommended, and a separate Trust Account has been 
established and the amounts were deposited into a 6-month CD. 

Establish documented policies and procedures and formalized risk assessments 
 
Policies and Procedures are being developed for adoption by the Board of Directors. 

Develop Fraud Policy 

Policies and Procedures are being developed for adoption by the Board of Directors. 
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